
 
 

 

 

 

 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 
ABN:  97 001 017 938 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Report for the Year Ended 

31 December 2017 

  



 
 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

Financial Report for the year ended 
31 December 2017 

 

CONTENTS                 Page 

 

Directors’ Report 1 – 3 

Secretary Manager’s Report 4 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration 5 - 6 

Statement of Financial Position 7 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 8 

Statement of Changes in Equity 8 

Statement of Cash Flows 9 

Notes to the Financial Statements 10 - 19  

Directors’ Declaration 20 

Independent Audit Report 21 - 22 

  



1 
 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Your directors present this report on the company for the financial year ended 31 December, 2017. 

Directors: 

 
Director 

 
Appointed 

 
Ceased 

No. of 
meetings 
eligible 

No. of 
meetings 
attended 

Apologies/ 
Leave of 
absence 

Gerry Swain 15/3/12  11 10 1 
Eric Bridgeman 11/8/12 11/12/16    
Jeff Nolan 11/2/13  11 11 - 
Colin Banks 28/4/14 28/3/17 2 0 2 
Ritchie Allen 4/5/15 14/2/17    
Shane Mahony 28/4/14 28/3/17 2 2 - 
Eda Wright 15/12/14 11/12/16    
Ian Holden 11/4/16  11 9 2 
Atosha Clancy 14/2/17  11 8 3 
Rowan Keast 28/3/17  9 8 1 
Rebekah Harwood 28/3/17  9 7 2 
Katrina Cavalieri 28/3/17  9 3 2 

 

Principal Activities: 

The principal activity of the entity and objectives remain the same as in the previous years and that is to 
provide a viable community and sports club for the people of Bangalow and surrounds. 

The Year: 

Congratulations to all who have been involved in the progression of BBSC to the stage we are at now. 

The support of the community has been overwhelming! 

The bar sales figures give us an indication of the rise in patronage over the last 5 years. In 2013 they were 
$344,730, in 2014 $350,568, in 2015 $384,275, in 2016 $625,037 and now in 2017 $917,842! 

For the second year in a row we have made an operating profit. This year the profit, before income from the 
land sale was $37,228, an increase of $12,726 on last year's operational profit. Something that all should be 
excited about. So far this year is looking good for another profitable year, hopefully another record year. 

The land sale was finally settled on 11th December 2017 after a very drawn out affair. The purchaser is now 
working on building a motel which he feels will take approximately 2 years. A motel will be a very desirable 
asset for us to have next door. 

At the end of June our solicitor Mark Baker retired and we were taken on by Meredith Duensing from Stuart 
Garrett Solicitors who finalised the sale for us. Both solicitors gave their time at no charge for which we were 
most appreciative. 

We do have approval in principal for a loan from ANZ. This will cover our debt to them, the repayment of 
Unit Trust holders and some surplus to be spent within the club. Reading last year's report it was noted that 
we had hoped to have the loan in place before Christmas 2016. However, ANZ required better trading figures 
so it has taken a little longer ...we are getting closer to their decision. The delay now is waiting for quotes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

for major works in the kitchen, bar and outside areas. As soon as we have these we should be able to move 
forward and finally pay out the unit trust holders. 

The board would like to thank the Unit Trust holders for their faith in us and for their patience. We have been 
working hard to obtain finance but there was only ever one way we were  going to be able to repay the large 
amount of  $208,000 and that was with a loan from a financial institution .They require good trading figures, 
which take time to achieve. 

When we asked in March last year to extend the time of Unit Trust holders loans we did not anticipate it still 
taking so long. We offered Unit Holders a choice of options - 1) to donate the money to BBSC which two 
people did.  2) to extend the time until end of March 2018 which is what the majority generously agreed to 
do and 3) to have their money returned. We returned $17,800  

Unfortunately we did not have the proceeds of the sale of the land available to use as these funds had been 
advanced in earlier years in order to keep the club functioning. 

The board would like to congratulate Shane Ironside on the progress that has been made to the club, both 
internally and externally. Much of this has come about because of his knowledge and skill in negotiating with 
the different breweries. The large amount of pavers were all donated by Rex Harris and Dean Lenthall and a 
team of volunteers laid them. Thank you. 

Another big thank you to Graeme and Jen from Stockpot Kitchen and their staff. Their desire to give first class 
service, good food and turn no one away is very commendable and appreciated by the board. They are true 
professionals and extremely hard working. It is not unusual for 450+ meals to come out on a busy night. Just 
astounding! 

However, the kitchen is at maximum output and there is no more room for additional workers. So we are 
looking at a major renovation to enlarge the kitchen and make it more productive. Shane and Graeme are 
working on a design for this.  

With the future looking bright we should keep in mind that the financial situation is still very tight. It may 
look as if we are spending lots of money but this has only been possible because of donations and voluntary 
work from community members. The board and Shane are mindful of the care and responsibility required to 
keep a tight rein on finances and to that end we have been active in strategic planning days. These will give 
the new board a good starting point in their efforts to continue the growth of the club into the future. 

We are very proud that the Club can now give back to the community by the sponsoring of sporting clubs. In 
addition these clubs, as well as other non-sporting groups, benefit from the Friday night raffles. This includes 
two schools and the Lions Club. 

Every year the alcohol wholesale prices increase in February and August although in 2017 there were three 
increases. We have been able to give back a little to our members by not increasing prices for the last two 
years. Unfortunately this will not be able to be sustained and prices will have to increase although we will 
remain competitive. 

The green volunteers are still doing a great job and the green continues to delight bowlers. It is good to see 
so many social bowlers enjoying a roll up and soon we will have the added bonus of the completion of the 
lighting. 
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Once again I would like to thank the board for their efforts in 2017 .The Club will have been left in a good 
position for the new board. Thank you to Jeff Nolan and Ian Holden who both go way beyond what is expected 
of volunteers. 

The future looks bright for the BBSC. It now feels like the community club it once was. We must not be 
complacent but continue working together to ensure the future of the club for years to come. 

 

 

Gerry Swain 

Chairman 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

SECRETARY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 

Dear Members, 

Reflecting on 2017, it has been a successful year for your Club, we continued to strive forward and 
complete many small projects and bring more fun and laughs to your friends, family and us. It was a trying 
year for many with the floods effecting so many people, Stockpot were heartfelt in their efforts and 
contribution to the cause and the community showed their spirit in many ways.   

Thank you to the Board members who have again, tirelessly, contributed hundreds of labour hours to 
helping the community asset grow in its strength and stature within the community. Once again much of 
the Club’s green space has been maintained by the Bowlers at no cost to the Club. There have been many 
silent achievers mixed into the Tradies group too, we are grateful for your contribution. 

The Club is proud to have sponsored the following sports Clubs; Bluedogs soccer, Rebels rugby, Bangalow 
netball and cricket plus funding to a number of local organisations that totals $25,500. The Friday raffles 
and other fundraisers have raised a combined total of $52,300 - a wonderful community effort.  

Repairs and maintenance behind the scene this year have once again been considerable with over $20,000 
spent keeping fridges, beer and kitchen equipment working. A further $30,000 has been spent on multiple 
small upgrades with the largest being a new pop up bar that can serve function and alfresco spaces now. 
We have spent a further $20,000 on entertainment for all to enjoy. 

The other significant upgrade has been the paved alfresco space overlooking the Bowling green and play 
area. This was a labour of love with 90% community donated. I would like to thank all who helped and 
offered their time, expertise, materials, pavers, machinery and love!  

The Stockpot Kitchen team, led by Jen and Gray, have given epic efforts through 2017 and their continued 
contribution to the Bowlo is nothing short of massive, I think the locals have expressed their thanks with 
lots of dinners.  

We have an exciting year ahead planned, one that will continue to improve your Club’s facilities, keep you 
interested and coming back for more laughs. 

 

 

Shane Ironside  

Secretary Manager 
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration: 

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2017 has been received and 
can be found on page 4 of the financial report. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors. 

 
 
 
Director   Gerard Swain 
Dated this 13th Day of February 2018 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 
 

 NOTE  2017  2016 
   $  $ 
ASSETS      
CURRENT ASSETS      
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4  44,241  79,894 
Receivables 5  7,333  1,454 
Inventories on Hand 6  28,793  27,915 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   80,367  109,263 
NON CURRENT ASSETS      
Shares in Independent Liquor Group   750  750 
Property, Plant and Equipment 7(b)  960,221  900,141 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   960,971  900,891 
      
TOTAL ASSETS   1,041,338  1,010,154 
      
LIABILITIES      
CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Bank Overdraft 8  6,921  8,732 
Accounts Payable 9  56,097  50,857 
Borrowings 10  299,506  331,227 
Provisions 11  6,957  4,709 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   369,481  395,525 
 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

   
369,481 

  
395,525 

 
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS 

   
671,857 

  
614,629 

 
MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

     

Asset Revaluation Reserve 
Retained Profits/(Deficit) 

7(a)  692,000 
(20,143) 

 692,000 
(77,371) 

 
TOTAL MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

   
671,857 

  
614,629 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 
 

 NOTE  2017  2016 
   $  $ 
      
REVENUE  2  981,135  690,959 
OTHER INCOME 2  40,800  95,427 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 3  (269,028)  (168,814) 
BORROWING COSTS 3  (8,669)  (10,011) 
PURCHASES   (358,048)  (259,957) 
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 3  (41,725)  (31,559) 
OTHER EXPENSES  3  (287,237)  (198,361) 
      
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX   57,228  117,684 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 (g)  -  - 
      
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX EXPENSE   57,228  117,684 
      
      
      
      

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

      
RETAINED PROFITS/(LOSS) AT THE      
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR   (77,371)  (195,055) 
      
NET PROFIT/(LOSS)   57,228  117,684 
      
RETAINED PROFITS/(LOSS) AT THE      
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR   (20,143)  (77,371) 
      
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 
 

 NOTE  2017  2016 
   $  $ 
   Inflows  Inflows 
   (Outflows)  (Outflows) 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS      
       
i  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
 Receipt from Option Fee – Land Sale   20,000  93,182 
 Receipt from members and customers   981,135  690,959 
 Payments to suppliers/employees   (893,082)  (631,775) 
 Interest paid   (8,669)  (10,011) 
       
 Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities 13b  99,384  142,355 
       
ii CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      
       
 Payment for property, plant and equipment   (101,804)  (45,192) 
       
 Net cash provided from/(used in) investing activities   (101,804)  (45,192) 
       
iii CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      
 Repayment of borrowings – Gaming Machine Loan   (5,293)  (10,585) 
 Repayment of borrowings – Unit Trust   (17,800)  - 
 Repayment of borrowings – Directors   -  (7,837) 
 Repayment of borrowings – ANZ Loan   (10,140)  (9,320) 
 Net cash provided from financing activities   (33,233)  (27,742) 
       
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held   35,653  69,421 
      
Cash at the beginning of the financial year (ex sub-clubs)   79,894  10,473 
      
Cash at the end of the financial year 13a  44,241  79,894 
       
       

 
 

 

 

 

 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements, which form part of the general purpose financial report, have been prepared in 
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views and disclosure requirements of the 
Corporations Law.  The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical costs and do not 
take into account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non-current assets.  
The financial statements have also been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the 
continuity of normal business activities, the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities in the 
ordinary course of business.  The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
a. Revenue  

Grant revenue is recognised in a statement of financial performance when the entity obtains 
control of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to 
the entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.   If conditions are attached to the 
grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the contribution, the recognition of the 
grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. 

Revenue from gaming is derived from poker machines and is recognised net of payouts to players. 

Revenue from bar sales is recognised when the beverage is acquired by patrons. 

Revenue from raffles is derived from ticket sales and is recognised in the period the raffle is drawn. 

Revenue from membership subscriptions are recognised upon receipt.  Revenue from members 
subscriptions is aligned with the period that members utilise the facilities provided and paid for. 

Commission revenue derived from patronising the Keno facilities provided, is recognised in the 
period it is earned.   

Donations are recognised as revenue when received. Donations also include fixed assets, such as 
Plant and Equipment received which have been booked in the financial accounts at fair market 
value. 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, when received. 

Revenue from rendering of a service is recognised upon delivery of the service to the customers. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, bank term 
deposits used for day to day operating cash flow.  

 
c. Property, Plant & Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are included at cost or at independent or directors’ valuation.  
Freehold land is shown at cost.  Buildings and plant and equipment are shown at cost less 
accumulated depreciation.  
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
d. Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the net cost of each non-current asset during its 
effective useful life to the company.  The straight-line method of depreciation has been used for 
buildings and plant and equipment. 
 
Major depreciation ranges for various classifications of assets are: 
Buildings  2.5% 
Plant and Equipment 10 - 25% 

 
e. Provision for Doubtful Debts 
 All known bad debts are written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts. 
 
f. Employee Benefits 

(i) The amounts estimated to be paid to employees for the entitlement to annual leave, 
vesting sick leave, and long service leave are provided at current pay rates (including on 
costs) and disclosed as current liabilities. 

 
(ii) The company has not made provision for non-vesting sick leave as the directors believe it is 

not probable that payment will be required. 
 
(iii) Contributions to employee superannuation funds are charged as an expense as they are 

incurred.  
 
g. Income Tax 

The company does not apply the principles of tax effective accounting, as the directors believe the 
resultant asset and liability recognised upon adoption will never be capable of realisation in the 
ordinary course of operations, due to the company being a non-taxable entity and exempt from 
income tax under Div 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.  Accordingly no provision for 
Income Tax has been raised. 

 
h. Segmental Information 

The company operates predominantly in the licensed club industry.  The principal activities of the 
company are to provide club facilities and services to its members.  The company operates in the 
geographical area of Bangalow, New South Wales, Australia.  

 
i. Inventories on Hand 

Inventories on hand consist of liquor, beer, wine and related items.  Inventory on hand at balance 
date is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the F.I.F.O method of assigning 
cost. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 
j. Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 
(ATO).  In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the costs of acquisition of the assets 
or as part of an item or expense. 
 
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 
 
The net amount of GST recoverable or payable to the ATO is included as a current asset or liability 
in the statement of financial position. 
 
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financial activities which are recoverable from or payable to 
the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 
 

 2017  2016 
 $  $ 
2. OPERATING REVENUE    
     
 REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
 Bar Sales 917,842  625,037 
 Gaming Income – Net of Payouts 12,015  12,369 
 Rental – Auditorium 9,872  14,023 
 Entertainment Revenue -  2,430 
 Members’ Subscriptions 7,749  5,277 
 Raffles and Competitions 11,528  6,673 
 Courtesy Bus 3,439  5,595 
 Other  18,690  19,555 
 TOTAL REVENUE 981,135  690,959 
     
 OTHER INCOME    
 Land Sale – Final Settlement 20,000  93,182 
 Donations received  10,800  2,245 
 Government Grants 10,000  - 
 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 40,800  95,427 
     
 TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 1,021,935  786,386 
     
3. NET PROFIT    
 (i) Net profit from ordinary activities has been determined after:-    
  (a) Charging as expenses    
   Borrowing Costs – Interest 8,669  10,011 
      
  (b) Depreciation  – Buildings 9,990  8,805 
     – Plant & Equipment 31,735  22,754 
      
 (ii) Expenses from ordinary activities    
  Administration & Operating Costs    
  Employee Costs 269,028  168,814 
      
  Other Expenses    
  Accounting 1,805  2,382 
  Advertising, Stationery, Postage & Printing 9,395  10,343 
  Cleaning Contractor 33,875  26,861 
  Clubhouse Supplies 12,235  6,577 
  Computer Expenses 7,294  - 
  Electricity & Gas 26,975  17,773 
  Entertainment, Promotions & Foxtel 28,733  28,721 
  Insurance 19,443  14,366 
  Rates and excess water 15,756  14,870 
  Repairs and Maintenance 30,424  11,776 
  Sponsorships 25,550  - 
  Telephone and Internet 3,117  3,359 
  Other Operating Expenses 72,635  61,333 
      
  Total Other Expenses 287,237  198,361 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 

 2017  2016 
 $  $ 
      
 (iii) Related Party Transactions    
  Transactions with directors or related parties involving;    
  (a) the provision of club services to directors was done on terms and conditions no more 

 favourable than those available on similar transactions to other members. 
   (b) the provision of services by directors or their spouses has been in a voluntary capacity 

 only and no remuneration has been paid for services provided. 
      
 (iv) Auditors’ Remuneration    
  Amounts received or due and receivable    
  By the auditor for     
      
  Audit Work – Reviewing the Accounts 3,500  3,500 
  Other Services -  - 
   3,500  3,500 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 2017  2016 
 $  $ 
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    
 Cash on Hand 20,748  13,715 
 Cash at Bank 23,493  66,179 
  44,241  79,894 
5. RECEIVABLES    
 Debtors, EFTPOS and PayPal 7,333  1,454 
     
6. INVENTORIES (at cost)    
 Inventory on Hand 28,793  27,915 
  28,793  27,915 
     
7. NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
 a. LAND AND BUILDINGS    
     
  Freehold Land – at NSW Valuer General’s value 700,000  700,000 
     
  Club Buildings – at cost 408,404  363,383 
  Less; Accumulated Depreciation (288,963)  (278,973) 
  TOTAL BUILDINGS 119,441  84,410 
     
  TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 819,441  784,410 
     
 Land Valuation    
 The Land, spanning 8,456m2 and described as Lot 1/417005 and PT10/748099 has been valued by the 

NSW Valuer General for rating and taxing purposes.  The value has been determined as $700,000 as at 
22 September 2016. 
 
The Board of Directors determined that the value of the land disclosed in the accounts of the Club 
should be increased to match the NSW Valuer General’s valuation of $700,000. 
 
The increment arising from this increase in value is reflected in the Asset Revaluation Reserve 
Account, as shown on the Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet). 

  
 b. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    
  Plant and equipment – at cost 492,574  435,791 
  Less; Accumulated Depreciation (351,794)  (320,060) 
  TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 140,780  115,731 
     
     
  TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 960,221  900,141 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 Note 2017  2016 
  $  $ 
 CURRENT LIABILITIES     
      
8. BANK OVERDRAFT     
 This bank overdraft facility has a current limit of $10,000. 6,921  8,732 
      
9. PAYABLES     
 Trade Creditors   24,460  23,360 
 ATO Payable – Current  20,396  17,592 
 Payroll Liabilities  11,241  9,905 
   56,097  50,857 
10. BORROWINGS     
 CURRENT     
 Gaming Machine Loan – Ainsworth Game Technology  -  5,293 
 Loan  - Insurance Funding  7,867  6,355 
 Bank Loan 10 (b) 83,473  93,613 
 Loan by Unit Trust 10 (c) 208,166  225,966 
   299,506  331,227 
      
 TOTAL BORROWINGS  299,506  331,227 
      
 (a)  ANZ Bank Loan Facilities     
  

A loan was negotiated with ANZ Bank prior to the 2011 financial year for the original sum of 
$125,000.  When the company was placed under voluntary administration (VA), this placed the 
loan into a default position.   
 
Whilst an agreement was reached that the ANZ Bank would continue to provide the loan facilities 
to the club, the club was advised by the ANZ Bank that it continues to expressly reserve its rights 
in relation to the default.  As a result of this position, the loan is still being classified as current in 
the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
The ANZ Bank are now comfortable with the existing loan facility and support, in principle, the 
Club’s desire to having the loan refinanced with ANZ, in order to increase the bank facility to 
enable the repayment of the Unit Holders loan funds and to provide working capital to enable 
some refurbishment of the kitchen and other areas of the club. 
 
The loan principle is presently being reduced by approximately $700 per month, with the balance 
owing as at 31/12/17 of $83,473.   
 
 
(b)  Security Provided for ANZ Loan and Overdraft Facility 
 
The ANZ Bank securities are secured by a registered first mortgage by Bangalow Bowling and 
Sports Club Ltd over the property situated at 21 Byron Bay Rd, Bangalow. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 
 
 

 (c)  Loan Facility Provided by Bowlo Sports & Community Club Pty Ltd as trustee for the Bowlo 
Sports & Community Club Unit Trust 
 
A loan for $173,300 was granted on 27 March 2012 as part of a club rescue committee initiative 
to help the club get back on its feet again following the appointment of voluntary administrator 
on 13 January 2012. 
 
This loan stands at $208,166 as at 31 December 2017.  The loan is interest free and now 
repayable in full on 30 March 2018, following an initial two year extension approved by Unit 
Holders’ at a meeting on 4 February 2015. Unit Holder’s gave a further 12 month extension on 
the loan, in order to satisfy the Lenders requirement for one more year of profitable trading to 
enable them to properly consider a refinancing proposal, which will facilitate the repayment of 
this loan.  
 
A Registered second mortgage was taken out on the club’s property situated at 21 Byron Bay Rd, 
Bangalow to secure it. 
 
 

11. PROVISIONS     
 Provision for Employees Annual Leave  6,957  4,709 
   6,957  4,709 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 2017  2016 
 $  $ 
12. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES    
 The directors believe there are no contingent liabilities at balance date.    
     
     
13. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS    
 a  Reconciliation of Cash    
  Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the 

related items in the balance sheet as follows:- 
      
  Cash on Hand 20,748  13,715 
  Cash at Bank 23,493  66,179 
      
  Cash at the end of the financial year 44,241  79,894 
      
  For the purpose of this statement of cash flows, cash includes:-    
  Cash on hand and at call deposits with bank or financial institutions.    
      
      
 b Reconciliation of net cash used in operating  

activities to operating loss after income tax 
   

      
  Operating Profit/(Loss) after income tax 56,350  117,684 
  Non-cash flows in Operating Profit    
   Depreciation of Property Plant and equipment 41,725  31,559 
      
  Changes in assets and liabilities    
  (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (5,879)  (1,261) 
  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories -  (14,257) 
  Increase/(Decrease) in Payables 5,240  10,772 
  (Decrease)/Increase in Employee Provisions 2,248  (925) 
  (Decrease)/Increase in Bank Overdraft (1,811)  (1,075) 
  (Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 1,511  (142) 
      
  Net cash provided by operating activities 99,384  142,355 

 
  



19 
 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 
14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 

No events have occurred subsequent to 31 December 2017 that would material effect or influence 
the Financial Report as at that date. 

 
15. GUARANTEE OF MEMBERS 
 The entity is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee.  

If the entity is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a 
maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding debts and obligations of the entity.   At 31 
December 2017 the number of members was 1,034.   

 
16. RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 
 Directors who held office during the course of the financial year are disclosed in the Directors’ 

Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These notes to the Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 
 

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 

 
 
 
In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Bangalow Bowling and Sports Club Ltd, the Directors 
declare that: 
 
1.  

(a) the accompanying financial statements and notes are drawn up so as to give a true and fair 
view of the financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the  performance for the 
financial year ended on that date of the company. 

 
(b) the financial statements and notes: 
 
 (i) have been made out in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and: 
 (ii) comply with applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

 
2. At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company can pay 

its debts as and when they become due and payable. 
 
Dated at Bangalow this 13th day of February, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
Director .......................................................................... 
  Gerard Swain 
 
 
 
Director .......................................................................... 
  Jeffrey Nolan 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 
ABN: 97 001 017 938 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd, which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the 
directors' declaration. 
 
Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Report 
 
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report that gives a true and fair value in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the 
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
presentation of the financial report is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the financial report based on our review. We conducted our 
review in accordance with Auditing Standard on Review Engagements ASRE 2415 Review of a Financial 
Report - Company Limited by Guarantee, in order to state whether, on the basis of the procedures 
described, we have become aware of any matter that makes us believe that the financial report is not in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 including: giving a true and fair view of the company's financial 
position as at 31 December 2015 and its performance for the year ended on that date; and complying with 
the Australian Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001. 
 
ASRE 2415 requires that we comply with the ethical requirements relevant to the review of the financial 
report. A review of a financial report consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for 
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing standards and 
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified as an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 
 
Independence 
 
In conducting our review, we have compiled with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, provided by 
the directors of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd on 17 February 2018 would be in the same terms if 
provided to the directors as at the date of this reviewer's report. 
 
Basis for Qualified Conclusion 
 
Balance Sheet 
 
The company's underlying records for its plant and equipment is a depreciation schedule which does not 
itemise individual items of plant & equipment.  This therefore does not allow for a review of any item for 
the purpose of considering an impairment of the asset’s net market value or for assessing the 
appropriateness of depreciation at an itemised level. 
 
As the information provided to us was limited, our review procedures were restricted to an agreement of 
the depreciation schedule to the ledger balance only.    
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

It gives me great pleasure to report that 2018 has been another successful and exciting year. 

The Club has continued to trade strongly as indicated by the increase in bar sales from $917K to $1M. 

It is very satisfying to be able to tell you that we have again finished in the black for the third year in a row. 

The profit (before depreciation charges) is $45,245 with only $17,912 of that being from gaming. It is 

pleasing that the club does not need to rely on gambling like many other clubs. 

In 2018 the Club was very pleased to be able to sponsor four local sporting clubs: The Rebels (rugby), the 

Blue Dogs (soccer), the Cricket Club and Netball Club as well as other local groups who benefit from Friday 

night raffles. In return they support the Club which we really appreciate. The Club is a community club and 

without that community support we would be nothing. 

There were three major events affecting the club during the year. 

The first was the granting of a loan by ANZ bank which we had been applying for since 2012. With this loan 

we achieved the repaying of the Unit Trust Loan, something that was a top priority for the board. 

Thank you to the Trust members for their help in keeping the club open; and also for their patience. 

We must also thank those trust members who elected to donate their money to the Club. This money was 

used to help renovate the bar which has become a more user-friendly place, especially for the staff. 

The kitchen has also been renovated as the caterer had outgrown the existing one. As with most 

renovations the cost had a blow out to $170K. However, there is now a model kitchen which will be able to 

handle most functions that we wish to have. 

Unfortunately we were surprised with two announcements in December which make up the second and 

third major events of the year. 

Shane, our manager for the last four years, submitted his resignation in order to take another challenging 

position. Shane’s vision, professionalism and expertise has moved the Bowlo onwards and upwards. 

We give him our very best wishes for his new position and thank him sincerely for his contribution to the 

success of the Club. 

The next announcement, a few days later, was that our caterer was also leaving to downsize to another 

location. The desire for more family time contributed to their decision. We also wish them all the best in 

their new venture and thank them for their contribution to the revival of the Club. 

These two announcements had the board hurriedly organising advertisements for both positions over the 

Christmas period. After a busy time with interviews the board settled on a General Manager, Chris Watson 

from Kingscliff. We feel he is the person to continue taking the club forward. He comes with a lot of 

experience and ideas. 

The caterer, Sacha Meier, is also very experienced and impressed the board with not only his food 

preparation but his proposals for progressing the club. 

It is felt that Chris and Sacha together have much to offer. 

For quite a few years the board has been working on a new constitution with little progress being made to 

finalise it. 

However, board members Atosha Clancy and Ian Dall took on the task. It was considered important to get a 

solicitor experienced in constitutions to help update the old one. 

The Men’s Bowling Club have elected to help by paying for this service ($5-$6K) 

Next a committee, drawn from our members, has been meeting to review the details and revise the 

constitution in order for the solicitor to finalise it. We hope to present the new constitution at the AGM. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

We are indebted to the local committee of volunteers for their valuable input. 

They are Rebecca Sergeant, Fletcher Potanin, Jerome Mellor, John Hall, Leyla Roberts and Thomas Harsas. 

Our grateful thanks to all involved. We are confident that our new, modern constitution reflects what the 

community wants and is in line with the various acts of parliament under which the club operates. 

One very important group necessary to run a club is the staff. We are blessed to have good, young, cheerful 

staff ably led by Shane and Jeremy. Our cleaners Kath and Peter go above and beyond in their dedication. 

Thank you to all. 

The bowling green continues to be maintained by Shane Mahoney and his team of volunteers from the 

Men’s Bowling Club. A big thank you to all concerned; our green is one of the best around. 

Greg Clark our accountant continues to be a big supporter of the club and we thank him for his help and 

guidance. 

Meredith Duensing from Stuart Garrett Solicitors has again been a tower of strength to us. 

The last big thankyou is to the members of the board who have combined well to give direction to the 

running of the club. They have worked well with Shane. This would have been one of the most skilled 

boards I have had the pleasure of working with.  

Special thanks to Rowan and Atosha who have done an immense amount of work especially when we were 

searching for a new manager and caterer. 

Our treasurer Jeff Nolan has been very supportive of me over the last six years and has done a very 

professional job in his role as treasurer. 

Ian Holden once again has kept the accounts and books in very good order.  

Beck Harwood, Ian Dall, Jayde Crowe and Sonny Singh have all been willing and able to be involved in board 

matters. 

I would like to conclude by welcoming our new manager Chris Watson who has come to us highly 

recommended as does our new caterer Sacha Meier.  

We look forward confidently to a bright future for them and for Bangalow Bowling and Sports Club. 

 

 

Gerry Swain 

Chairman 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Your directors present this report on the company for the financial year ended 31 December, 2018. 

Directors: 

 

Director 

 

Appointed 

 

Ceased 

No. of 

meetings 

eligible 

No. of 

meetings 

attended 

Apologies/ 

Leave of 

absence 

Gerry Swain 15/03/12  11 10 1 

Jeff Nolan 11/02/13  11 10 1 

Ian Holden 21/03/16  11 8 3 

Atosha Clancy 14/02/17  11 10 1 

Rowan Keast 28/03/17  11 11 - 

Rebekah Harwood 28/03/17  11 7 4 

Katrina Cavalieri 28/03/17 26/06/18 9 3 6 

Jayd Crowe 26/03/18  10 9 1 

Sonny Singh 26/03/18  10 8 2 

Ian Dall 26/03/18  10 9 1 

 

Company Secretary: 

The company secretary at the end of the financial year was Shane Ironside who was appointed to that 

position on 8th April 2015.    Shane Resigned as company secretary with effect from 28th February 2019. 
 

Objectives: 

The long and short term objectives of the company are to ensure that the company’s financial position 

remains sound in both the short and long term so that members and patrons can enjoy their club for years 

to come. 
 

Strategy: 

The strategy that the company employs to achieve those objectives is to: 

1. Carefully monitor income and expenditure to improve operating profit; 

2. Introduce new ideas that will attract more people to the club to improve income streams; and 

3. Promote the above objectives at every opportunity. 
 

Principal Activities: 

The principal activity of the company is to provide a viable community and sports club for the people of 

Bangalow and surrounds. 
 

Achieving Entity’s Objectives 

The principal activities assisted in achieving the company’s objectives by encouraging members and patrons 

to use the company’s facilities. 
 

Measurement of Performance 

The company measures its performance by profit and patron satisfaction.   Performance is also measured 

against budget forecasts.  Key performance indicators used by the company in monitoring performance 

include review of gross profit, profit to turnover and profit to income percentages. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Summary of Performance   2018  2017 

   $  $ 
      

Gross Revenue   1,087,318  1,021,935 

Expenses   (1,092,323)  (964,707) 

Operating Profit/(Loss)   (5,005)  57,228 

 

Significant Changes in State of Affairs 

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company during the year. 
 

Events after the reporting date 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or 

could significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations or the state of 

affairs of the company in future financial years. 
 

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies 

There are no planned changes in the operations of the company which will significantly affect the results of 

the operations in future financial years. 
 

Auditor’s Independence Declaration: 

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2018 has been received and 

can be found on page 5 of the financial report. 
 

Directors Benefits 

No directors have a financial interest in any contract or proposed contract with the company. 

In accordance with Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act, since the end of the previous financial year, except 

for minor services rendered in the ordinary course of business, no director has received or become entitled 

to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director 

or with a firm of which they are a member or with a company in which they have a substantial financial 

interest. 
 

Indemnification and Insurance of Officers and Auditors 

The company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, for any person who is or has been an 

officer or auditor of the company indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a 

liability incurred as an officer or auditor including costs and expenses in successfully defending legal 

proceedings; or paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against liability incurred 

as an officer or auditor for costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings with the exception of insurance 

premiums paid to insure each of the directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in 

defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in a capacity of director of the 

company, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the company. 

 

Proceedings on Behalf of Company 

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or intervene in any 

proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the 

company for all or any part of those proceedings. 

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

After Balance Day Events 

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 

affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations or the 

state of affairs of the company in future financial years. 
 

Membership Liability 

The company is limited by guarantee without share capital.  The number of members as at 31 December 

2018 was 1,350 (2017: 1,034).  If the company is wound up, the constitution states that each member of 

the company is liable to contribute a maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding liabilities of 

the company.   At 31 December 2018 the maximum total amount that members of the company would be 

liable to contribute if the company is wound up is $1,350. 
 

Real Property 

All real property as defined in section 41J of the Registered Club Act (NSW) 1976 owned by the company is 

core property.  The company does not have any non-core property. 
 

Environmental Issues 

The company’s operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth 

and State Legislation. 

The board believes that the company has adequate systems in place for the management of its 

environmental requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they 

apply to the company. 
 

Dividends Paid or Recommended 

The constitution of the company prohibits the distribution of profits to the members.   Accordingly, no 

dividend or distributions were or could be paid to members. 
 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors. 

 

Director: Gerard Swain 
 

Dated this 5th Day of March 2019 

 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

Under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 

 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2018 there have 

been: 

• No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 

relation to the audit; and 

• No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

 

Paul Morris – Registered Company Auditor 

OnTrack Chartered Accountants 
 

Dated this 5th Day of March 2019 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

 

 

 NOTE  2018  2017 

   $  $ 

ASSETS      

CURRENT ASSETS      

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4  14,373  44,241 

Receivables 5  18,862  7,333 

Inventories on Hand 6  34,659  28,793 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   67,894  80,367 

NON CURRENT ASSETS      

Shares in Independent Liquor Group   750  750 

Property, Plant and Equipment 7(b)  1,117,999  960,221 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   1,118,749  960,971 

      

TOTAL ASSETS   1,186,641  1,041,338 

      

LIABILITIES      

CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Bank Overdraft 8  7,513  6,921 

Accounts Payable 9  54,824  56,097 

Borrowings 10  6,396  299,506 

Provisions 11  10,080  6,957 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   78,813  369,481 

      

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES      

Borrowings 10  440,978  - 

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES   440,978  - 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

   

519,791 

  

369,481 

 

NET ASSETS 

   

666,852 

  

671,857 

 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

     

Asset Revaluation Reserve 

Retained Profits/(Deficit) 

7(a)  692,000 

(25,148) 

 692,000 

(20,143) 

 

TOTAL MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

   

666,852 

  

671,857 

   

 

 

 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

 

 

 NOTE  2018  2017 

   $  $ 

      

REVENUE  2  1,071,318  981,135 

OTHER INCOME 2  16,000  40,800 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 3  (353,466)  (269,028) 

BORROWING COSTS 3  (22,613)  (8,669) 

PURCHASES   (380,989)  (358,048) 

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 3  (50,250)  (41,725) 

OTHER EXPENSES  3  (285,005)  (287,237) 

      

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX   (5,005)  57,228 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 (h)  -  - 

      

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX EXPENSE   (5,005)  57,228 

      

      

      

 

 

 

 

     

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

      

RETAINED PROFITS/(LOSS) AT THE      

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR   (20,143)  (77,371) 

      

NET PROFIT/(LOSS)   (5,005)  57,228 

      

RETAINED PROFITS/(LOSS) AT THE      

END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR   (25,148)  (20,143) 

      

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

 

 

 NOTE  2018  2017 

   $  $ 

   Inflows  Inflows 

   (Outflows)  (Outflows) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS      

       

i  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

 Receipt from Option Fee – Land Sale   -  20,000 

 Receipt from members and customers   1,087,055  981,135 

 Payments to suppliers/employees   (1,040,805)  (894,594) 

 Interest paid   (15,957)  (8,669) 

       

 Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities 15b  30,293  97,872 

       

ii CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

       

 Payment for property, plant and equipment   (208,029)  (101,804) 

       

 Net cash provided from/(used in) investing activities   (208,029)  (101,804) 

       

iii CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

 Repayment of borrowings – Gaming Machine Loan   -  (5,293) 

 Repayment of borrowings – Unit Trust   (208,166)  (17,800) 

 Proceeds from/(Repayment) Insurance Funding Loan   (1,471)  1,512 

 Refinance of borrowings – ANZ Loan   357,505  (10,140) 

 Net cash provided from financing activities   147,868  (31,721) 

       

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held   (29,868)  (35,653) 

      

Cash at the beginning of the financial year (ex sub-clubs)   44,241  79,894 

      

Cash at the end of the financial year 15a  14,373  44,241 

       

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

The financial statements are for the Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited as an individual entity.   The 

Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited is a public company limited by guarantee, incorporated and 

domiciled in Australia. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 5
th

 March 2019 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

 

1. Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 

accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the 

Corporations Act 2001.   

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would 

result in a financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, 

events and conditions.   Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial 

statements are presented below.  They have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical costs 

modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, 

financial assets and financial liabilities. 

These financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board. 

 

a. Revenue  

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into 

account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer 

of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in 

those goods. 

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 

applicable to the financial assets. 

Revenue recognition relating to the provision of services is recognised upon delivery of the service 

to the customer. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

 

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents  

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, bank term 

deposits used for day to day operating cash flow, and bank overdrafts.   Bank overdrafts are shown 

within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.  

 

c. Property, Plant & Equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, 

any accumulated depreciation and impairment. 

Property 

Freehold land is measured at directors’ valuation.   Buildings are measured on a cost basis, less 

subsequent depreciation charges. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost or deemed cost, less accumulated 

depreciation/amortisation and impairment losses. 

Plant and equipment – impairment 

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in 

excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the 

basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' employment and 

subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in 

determining recoverable amounts. 

In assessing value in use, the company has used depreciated replacement cost since the company is 

a not for profit entity where the economic benefits of its assets are not primarily dependent on the 

assets ability to generate net cash flows and the company would, if deprived of the asset, replace 

its remaining future economic benefits. 

 Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the net cost of each non-current asset during its 

effective useful life to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.  The 

straight-line method of depreciation has been used for buildings and plant and equipment. 

Major depreciation ranges for various classifications of assets are: 

Buildings  2.5% 

Plant and Equipment 10 - 25% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of 

each reporting period. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount.  

These gains and losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

d. Leases 

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the 

lessor, are charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

e. Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions to the Instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the 

company commits itself to either purchase or sell the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted). 

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs except where the 

instrument is classified "at fair value through profit or loss', in which case transaction costs are 

expensed to profit or loss immediately. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised cost using the effective 

interest method, or cost. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine 

fair value.  In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted. 

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition less principal repayments and any reduction for impairment, and 

adjusted for any cumulative amortisation of the difference between that initial amount and the 

maturity amount calculated using the effective interest method. 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

The effective interest method is used to allocate interest income or interest expense over the 

relevant period and is equivalent to the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 

or receipts (including fees, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the 

expected life (or when this cannot be reliably predicted, the contractual term) of the financial 

instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Revisions to 

expected future net cash flows will necessitate an adjustment to the carrying amount with a 

consequential recognition of an income or expense item in profit or loss. 

Fair value is the price the company would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a 

liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing 

market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is determined based on current bid prices 

for all quoted investments. Valuation techniques are applied to determine the fair value for all 

unlisted securities, including recent arm's length transactions, reference to similar instruments and 

option pricing models. 

Impairment 

At the end of each reporting period, the company assesses whether there is objective evidence that 

a financial asset has been impaired. A financial asset (or a group of financial assets) is deemed to be 

impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events 

(a loss event) having occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 

financial asset(s). 

In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that 

the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 

delinquency in interest or principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other 

financial reorganisation and changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance 

account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After 

having taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying 

amount cannot be recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to 

the allowance account or the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no 

impairment amount was previously recognised in the allowance account. 

When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have been 

renegotiated, the company recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking into 

account the original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that 

have occurred are duly considered. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the 

asset is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing 

involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised 

where the related obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between 

the carrying amount of the financial liability, which is extinguished or transferred to another party, 

and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities 

assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

f. Impairment of Assets 

At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 

intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been 

impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the 

asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying amount.  
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ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

Any excess of the asset's carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in 

profit or loss. 

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not primarily dependent upon the asset's 

ability to generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its 

remaining future economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement 

cost of an asset. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of a class of asset, the entity estimates 

the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is debited against the revaluation 

surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed 

the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset. 

 

g. Employee Benefits 

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered 

by employees to the end of the reporting period.   Employee benefits that are expected to be 

wholly settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 

liability is settled. 

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period 

have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for 

those benefits.   In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and 

the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements.   Cashflows are discounted 

using market yields on high quality corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by 

credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cashflows.  Changes in 

the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss. 

Contributions to employee superannuation funds are charged as an expense as they are incurred.  

 

h. Income Tax 

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Div 50 

of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

 

i. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based 

on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable 

expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both 

externally and within the company. 

Key Estimates 

Impairment 

The company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions and 

events specific to the company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 

Plant and equipment 

As indicated in Note 1(c), the company reviews the useful life of plant and equipment on an annual 

basis. 

  

j. Inventories on Hand 

Inventories on hand consist of liquor, beer, wine and related items.  Inventory on hand at balance 

date is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
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ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

k. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 

Accounting Standards issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to the company, 

together with an assessment of the potential impact of such pronouncements on the company 

when adopted in future periods, are discussed below: 

 

AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). 

When effective, this Standard will replace the current accounting requirements applicable to leases 

in AASB 117: Leases and related Interpretations. AASB 16 introduces a single lessee accounting 

model that eliminates the requirement for leases to be classified as operating or finance leases. 

The main changes introduced by the new Standard are as follows: 

• recognition of a right-of-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-term leases 

with less than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-value assets); 

• depreciation of right-of-use assets in line with AASB 116: Property, Plant and Equipment in 

profit or loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and interest components; 

• inclusion of variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate in the initial 

measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the commencement date; 

• application of a practical expedient to permit a lessee to elect not to separate non-lease 

components and instead account for all components as a lease; and 

• inclusion of additional disclosure requirements. 

The transitional provisions of AASB 16 allow a lessee to either retrospectively apply the Standard to 

comparatives in line with AASB 108: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 

Errors or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective application as an adjustment to opening 

equity on the date of initial application. 

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 16 will impact the company's financial 

statements, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact. 

 

AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on 

or after 1 January 2019). 

This Standard is applicable to transactions that do not arise from enforceable contracts with 

customers involving performance obligations. 

The significant accounting requirements of AASB 1058 are as follows: 

• Income arising from an excess of the initial carrying amount of an asset over the related 

contributions by owners, increases in liabilities, decreases in assets and revenue should be 

immediately recognised in profit or loss. For this purpose, the assets, liabilities and revenue 

are to be measured in accordance with other applicable Standards. 

• Liabilities should be recognised for the excess of the initial carrying amount of a financial 

asset (received in a transfer to enable the entity to acquire or construct a recognisable non-

financial asset that is to be controlled by the entity) over any related amounts recognised in 

accordance with the applicable Standards. The liabilities must be amortised to profit or loss 

as income when the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer. 

An entity may elect to recognise volunteer services or a class of volunteer services as an accounting 

policy choice if the fair value of those services can be measured reliably, whether or not the 

services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Recognised volunteer services 

should be measured at fair value and any excess over the related amounts (such as contributions by 

owners or revenue) immediately recognised as income in profit or loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

The transitional provisions of this Standard permit an entity to either: restate the contracts that 

existed in each prior period presented in accordance with  AASB 108 (subject to certain  practical 

expedients); or recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective application to incomplete contracts 

on the date of initial application. For this purpose, a completed contract is a contract or transaction 

for which the entity has recognised all of the income in accordance with AASB 1004: Contributions. 

Although the directors anticipate that the adoption of AASB 1058 may have an impact on the 

company's financial statements, it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of 

such impact. 

 

l. Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 

except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 

(ATO).  In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the costs of acquisition of the assets 

or as part of an item or expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable or payable to the ATO is included as a current asset or liability 

in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis.  The GST component of 

cash flows arising from investing and financial activities which are recoverable from or payable to 

the ATO are classified as operating cash flows. 

 

 

 2018  2017 

 $  $ 

2. OPERATING REVENUE    

     

 REVENUE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

 Bar Sales 1,005,823  917,842 

 Gaming Income – Net of Payouts 17,912  12,015 

 Rental – Auditorium 7,729  9,872 

 Members’ Subscriptions 3,596  7,749 

 Raffles and Competitions 5,788  11,528 

 Courtesy Bus 2,865  3,439 

 Other  27,605  18,690 

 TOTAL REVENUE 1,071,318  981,135 

     

 OTHER INCOME    

 Land Sale – Final Settlement -  20,000 

 Donations received  16,000  10,800 

 Government Grants -  10,000 

 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 16,000  40,800 

     

 TOTAL REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 1,087,318  1,021,935 
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ABN: 97 001 017 938 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 
 

 2018  2017 

3. NET PROFIT    

 (i) Net profit from ordinary activities has been determined after:-    

  (a) Charging as expenses    

   Borrowing Costs – Interest 15,957  8,669 

                                  – Borrowing Fees and Charges 6,656  -  

   22,613  8,669 

      

  (b) Depreciation  – Buildings 11,441  9,990 

     – Plant & Equipment 38,809  31,735 

   50,250  41,725 

 (ii) Expenses from ordinary activities    

  Administration & Operating Costs    

  Employee Costs 353,466  269,028 

      

  Other Expenses    

  Accounting 2,855  1,805 

  Advertising, Stationery, Postage & Printing 13,610  9,395 

  Bank Fees 6,961  4,431 

  Cleaning Contractor 43,352  33,875 

  Clubhouse Supplies 8,713  12,235 

  Computer Expenses 5,952  7,294 

  Electricity & Gas 32,262  26,975 

  Entertainment, Promotions & Foxtel 30,100  28,733 

  Equipment Leasing 13,721  4,393 

  Insurance 15,757  19,443 

  Legal Fees 3,100  - 

  Rates and excess water 8,412  15,756 

  Repairs and Maintenance 22,653  30,424 

  Sponsorships 14,875  25,550 

  Telephone and Internet 2,711  3,117 

  Other Operating Expenses 59,971  63,811 

      

  Total Other Expenses 285,005  287,237 

      

 (iii) Related Party Transactions    

  Transactions with directors or related parties involving;    

  (a) the provision of club services to directors was done on terms and conditions no more 

 favourable than those available on similar transactions to other members. 

   (b) the provision of services by directors or their spouses has been in a voluntary capacity 

 only and no remuneration has been paid for services provided. 

      

 (iv) Auditors’ Remuneration    

  Amounts received or due and receivable    

  By the auditor for     

      

  Audit Work – Reviewing the Accounts (Prior Year) 3,500  3,500 

  Audit Work – Auditing the Accounts (Current Year) 3,500  - 

  Other Services -  - 

   7,000  3,500 
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 2018  2017 

 $  $ 

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    

 Cash on Hand 7,261  20,748 

 Cash at Bank 7,112  23,493 

  14,373  44,241 

     

5. RECEIVABLES    

 Debtors, EFTPOS and PayPal 1,870  7,333 

 Prepaid Expenses 15,431  - 

 Accrued Income 773  - 

 ATO Receivable  788  - 

  18,862  7,333 

     

6. INVENTORIES    

 Inventory on Hand 34,659  28,793 

  34,659  28,793 

     

7. NON-CURRENT ASSETS    

 a. LAND AND BUILDINGS    

     

  Freehold Land – at Board of Directors valuation 700,000  700,000 

     

  Club Buildings – at cost 556,164  408,404 

  Less; Accumulated Depreciation (300,405)  (288,963) 

  TOTAL BUILDINGS 255,759  119,441 

     

  TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 955,759  819,441 

     

 Land Valuation    

 The directors have based the valuation of the land on the NSW Valuer General’s valuation 

which as at 28
th

 September 2018 was $764,000. 

 

  

 b. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT    

  Plant and equipment – at cost 457,517  492,574 

  Less; Accumulated Depreciation (295,277)  (351,794) 

  TOTAL PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 162,240  140,780 

     

     

  TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1,117,999  960,221 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

c. Movements in Carrying Amounts 

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between 

the beginning and end of the current financial year: 
 

 Land at 

Valuation  

Buildings at 

Cost 

Plant & 

Equipment 

at Cost 

Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

 

Balance at Beginning of year 700,000 119,441 140,780 960,221 

Additions - 147,760 60,269 208,029 

Depreciation expense - (11,441) (38,809) (50,250) 

Balance at the end of the year 700,000 255,759 162,240 1,117,999 

  

Note 

 

2018 

  

2017 

  $  $ 

      

8. BANK OVERDRAFT     

 This bank overdraft facility has a current limit of $10,000. 7,513  6,921 

      

9. PAYABLES     

 Trade Creditors   27,889  24,460 

 ATO Payable – Current  -  20,396 

 Payroll Liabilities  16,761  11,241 

 Accrued Expenses  10,174  - 

   54,824  56,097 

      

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 

days.   The carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation 

of fair value due to the short-term nature of the balances. 

 

10. BORROWINGS     

 CURRENT     

 Loan  - Insurance Funding  6,396  7,867 

 Bank Loan  -  83,473 

 Loan by Unit Trust 10 (c) -  208,166 

   6,396  299,506 

 NON CURRENT     

 Bank Loan 10 (b) 440,978  - 

   440,978  - 

      

 TOTAL BORROWINGS  447,374  299,506 

      

 (a)  ANZ Bank Loan Facilities     

 A loan was negotiated with ANZ Bank prior to the 2011 financial year for the original sum of 

$125,000.  When the company was placed under voluntary administration (VA), this placed the 

loan into a default position.   

Whilst an agreement was reached that the ANZ Bank would continue to provide the loan facilities 

to the club, the club was advised by the ANZ Bank that it continues to expressly reserve its rights 

in relation to the default.  As a result of this position, the loan was still being classified as current 

in the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2017. 

 



18 

 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED 

ABN: 97 001 017 938 

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

Subsequent to the end of the 2017 year the ANZ Bank, comfortable with the Club’s trading 

performance, provided additional finance under a new loan agreement to allow for the 

repayment of the Unit Holders loan funds and to provide working capital to assist with 

refurbishment of the kitchen and other areas of the club. 

The new loan facility, with a peak facility of $442,115, has a 15 year term, with interest only 

repayments required for the first 12 months.  

This loan stands at $440,978 as at 31 December 2018. 

 

(b)  Security Provided for ANZ Loan and Overdraft Facility 

The ANZ Bank securities are secured by a registered first mortgage by Bangalow Bowling and 

Sports Club Ltd over the property situated at 21 Byron Bay Rd, Bangalow (title reference 

2/1236845). 

 

 (c)  Loan Facility Provided by Bowlo Sports & Community Club Pty Ltd as trustee for the Bowlo 

Sports & Community Club Unit Trust 

A loan for $173,300 was granted on 27 March 2012 as part of a club rescue committee initiative 

to help the club get back on its feet again following the appointment of voluntary administrator 

on 13 January 2012. 

This loan was $208,166 as at 31 December 2017.  The loan was interest free and repayable in full 

on 30 March 2018, following an initial two year extension approved by Unit Holders’ at a meeting 

on 4 February 2015. Unit Holder’s gave a further 12 month extension on the loan, in order to 

satisfy the Lenders requirement for one more year of profitable trading to enable them to 

properly consider a refinancing proposal, which will facilitate the repayment of this loan.  

This loan was refinanced with existing lenders ANZ Bank and on 8 August 2018, fully repaid to 

Unit Holders. 

   2018  2017 

   $  $ 

11. PROVISIONS     

 Provision for Employee Entitlements  10,080  6,957 

   10,080  6,957 

      

 

12. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL REMUNERATION 

 

    

 The total compensation paid to key management personnel is as follows: 

 

 Directors  -  - 

 Other Key Management Personnel  177,152  146,839 

   177,152  146,839 

  

 

    

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 The directors believe there are no contingent liabilities at balance date. 

 

 

14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 

No events have occurred subsequent to 31 December 2018 that would material effect or influence 

the Financial Report as at that date. 
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 2018  2017 

 $  $ 

     

15. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS    

 a  Reconciliation of Cash    

  Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the 

related items in the balance sheet as follows:- 

      

  Cash on Hand 7,261  20,748 

  Cash at Bank 7,112  23,493 

      

  Cash at the end of the financial year 14,373  44,241 

      

  For the purpose of this statement of cash flows, cash includes:-    

  Cash on hand and at call deposits with bank or financial institutions.    

      

      

 b Reconciliation of net cash used in operating  

activities to operating loss after income tax 

   

      

  Operating Profit/(Loss) after income tax (5,005)  57,228 

  Non-cash flows in Operating Profit    

  Depreciation of Property Plant and equipment 50,250  41,725 

      

  Changes in assets and liabilities    

  (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (11,528)  (5,879) 

  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (5,866)  (879) 

  Increase/(Decrease) in Payables (1,273)  5,240 

  (Decrease)/Increase in Employee Provisions 3,123  2,248 

  (Decrease)/Increase in Bank Overdraft 592  (1,811) 

      

  Net cash provided by operating activities 30,293  97,872 

 

 

16. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

Financial Risk 

The company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and 

payable, bank loans and overdrafts and leases. 

The totals of each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as 

detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows: 

 2018  2017 

 $  $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 14,373  44,241 

Trade and other receivables 1,870  7,333 

Total financial assets 16,243  51,574 

Trade and other payables 54,824  56,097 

Borrowings 454,887  306,427 

Total financial liabilities 509,711  362,524 
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 

 

 

 

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Bangalow Bowling and Sports Club Ltd, the Directors of 

the company declare that: 

 

1. The accompanying financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 6 to 19, are in accordance 

with the Corporations Act 2001 and: 

 

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and 

 

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of the 

performance for the year ended on that date of the company. 

 

2. In the directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to 

pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. 

 

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

Director .......................................................................... 

  Gerard Swain 

 

 

 

Director .......................................................................... 

  Jeffrey Nolan 

 

 

Dated 5
th

 March 2019  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD 

 

Report on the Financial Report 

 

Auditor's Opinion 

I have audited the financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd (the company), which comprises 

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 

ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 

and the directors' declaration. 

In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd has been prepared 

in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

i. giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 31 December 2018 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and 

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards - reduced Disclosure Requirements and the 

Corporations Regulations 2001. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

section of my report. I am independent of the company in accordance with the auditor independence 

requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional 

and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are 

relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities 

in accordance with the Code. 

I confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given 

to the directors of the company, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this 

auditor’s report. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 

and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements and 

the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 

the preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease 

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 

my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of this financial report.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
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As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgement and 

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the association's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the committee 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the association's ability to continue as a going 

concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify my opinion.  My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of my auditor's report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the association to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report. I am responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit 

opinion. 

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify 

during my audit. 

 

 

 

Paul Morris – Registered Company Auditor 

OnTrack Chartered Accountants 

 

 

5
th

 March 2019 
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

On behalf of the Board of Directors I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statements for
the year ending 31 December 2019.

As this is my first report as Chairman of the Board of Directors, I would like to take this opportunity to express

my sincere gratitude to my predecessor Gerry Swain, who held office from 201.2 - March 2Ot9, a period of
great significance in the history of the Club. Under Gerry's leadership the Club moved from its state of despair
in 2OL2 to the thrlving community owned business we now all enjoy and love. The Club and community thank
you Gerry and your trusted deputy Jeff (Blocka) Nolan, as well as all of the Board members past and present,

volunteers and patrons for everything you have done for the Club over the years.

Both Gerry Swain and Jeff (Blocka) Nolan retired as Directors of the Board at the AGM in March 2019, both
gentlemen having been honoured with Life Membership in 2018.

A new executive was appointed after the AGM in March 2019 comprlsing of myself as Club President, Atosha
Clancy Vice-President and Sonny Singh as Treasurer.

Another significant item that was voted on at the last AGM was a new Constitution. The Club has been
operating under our modernised Constitution since its adoption, and have appreciated the clarity it has

provided for our governance framework. Thank you again to all involved in the effort to get this new
Constitution in place.

2019 started with a number of key changes at the Club, including a new General Manager, a new Caterer and
a new Executive Board. Given these significant changes, all in a short space of time, we braced ourselves for a

potentially challenging year financially and exercised a very cautious approach to our decision making.

It delights me to report that despite the changes the Club has again finished in the black for a fourth
consecutive year, reporting a modest cash surplus from operating activities though an increase in bar sales
(our primary revenue source) of 5.3% totalling S1,058,761. for the financial year. Additionally, we have seen a
significant increase in membership during the period with a total membership now in excess of 2500.

The Board has continued working on its strategic vision with 2 half day planning sessions being held in 2019.
The Board has broken these sessions into three categories: the upcoming 12 months, the next 3 - 5 years,
and the future 5 + years. Economic sustainability, good governance practices and social and environmental
responsibility as a business in our community underpin the philosophy of these strategic sessions. The 2019 -
2022 strategic plan is available on Club's website.

As we all know, the club building and surrounds are in need of ongoing repair and maintenance. Without the
funds to undertake any major works, the Board has prioritised work to be done and purchases that will need
to be made. ln 2019, numerous long outdoor tables were remade and painted; the Board and some members
achieved a lot in several working bees clearing rubbish, planting and mulching; and the tasks prioritised for
2020 are already underway.

ln September, the Board successfully renegotiated the Clubs debt facilities held with ANZ bank at a reduced
interest rate, further strengthening our financial position for both short term cash flow and long-term
liabilities.
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The Club has continued its support of local sporting groups with sponsorship of the Bluedogs (Soccer), Rebels

(Rugby), Bangalow Netball and Bangalow Cricket, as well as other local groups who benefit from Friday night
raffles. ln return they support the Club with their patronage which makes for an excellent partnership.

The Clubs new General Manager Chris Watson came highly recommended to the Board when he was
appointed, and he has lived up to his professional reputation. Chris has settled in very well and done a

fantastic job of getting to know the locals. Chris joined the Club as General Manager during a period of
change in 2019 and has done an excellent job of stabilising the Clubs operations and broader team. We look
forward to a long and successful association with Chris at the helm.

A special thank you to the following people and businesses for their unwavering support of the Bowlo in

2019:

Jeff (Blocka) Nolan and lan Holden for your continued assistance with banking, accounts management and
bookkeeping and Greg Clark as the Club's Accountant.
Shane Mahoney, Gerry Swain and the team of volunteers who keep the bowling green to the magnificent
standard it is.

Sacha Meier and the team at One Green Acre for a fantastic culinary experience and for the initiative to
cultivate fresh produce grown on site, which has added to the ambience of the Club's outdoor area.

The Club's staff who are a great team who not only offer friendly service to our patrons, but also step up to
cover shifts and assist Chris when needed.

And finally, I sincerely thank all members of board. We have worked excellently together during the year and
you should all be proud of the voluntary contribution you make to such a wonderful community Club.

The Bangalow Bowlo is OUR community club and I look forward to the continued support from members of
the board, management, staff and members of the Club.

Regards

Rowan Keast
Chairman

CN^v
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Your directors present this report on the Club for the financial year ended 31 December,2Ol9.

Di recto rs:

Director Appointed Ceased

No. of
meetings
elisible

No. of
meetings
attended

Apologies/
Leave of
absence

Gerry Swain Ls/03/12 02/04119 3 2 1,

Jeff Nolan 1.u02/13 o2l04/\e 3 3

lan Holden 27/03/16 72 7 5

Atosha Clancy L4/02/17 72 11 1

Rowan Keast 28/03/t7 t2 11 1

Rebekah Harwood 28103/t7 t2 8 4

Jayd Crowe 25/03/18 72 1t 1

Sonnv Sinsh 26/03/18 72 1,L 1

lan Dall 26/03/18 12 1,1 7

Simon Evans 1.O/Os/L9 7 6 1

Objectives:

The long and short term objectives of the Club are to ensure that the Club's financial position remains
sound in both the short and long term so that members and patrons can enjoy their club for years to come.

Strategy:

The strategy that the Club employs to achieve those objectives is to:

1-. Carefully monitor income and expenditure to improve operatingprofiU

2. lntroduce new ideas that will attract more people to the club to improve income streams; and

3. Promote the above objectives at every opportunity.

Principal Activities:

The principal activity of the Club is to provide a viable community and sports club for the people of
Bangalow and surrounds.

Achieving Entity's Objectives

The principal activities assisted in achieving the Club's objectives by encouraging members and patrons to
use the Club's facilities.

Measurement of Performance

The Club measures its performance by profit and patron satisfaction. Performance is also measured

against budget forecasts. Key performance indicators used by the Club in monitoring performance include

review of gross profit, profit to turnover and profit to income percentages.
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Summary of Performance

Gross Revenue

Expenses

Operating Profit/(Loss)

Net cash provided from operating activlties

2019

s

7,23L,891,

1,,307,926

__129p$l_
15,64t

20L8

5

L,L65,L16

7,770,12L

____i!49!_
30,293

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Club during the year.

Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the f inancial year which significantly affected or
could significantly affect the operations of the Club, the results of those operations or the state of affairs
of the Club in future financial years.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

There are no planned changes in the operations of the Club which will significantly affect the results of the
operations in future financial years.

Auditor's lndependence Declaration :

The lead auditor's independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been received and
can be found on page 7 of the financial report.

Directors Benefits

No directors have a financial interest in any contract or proposed contract with the Club.

ln accordance with Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act, since the end ofthe previous financial year, except
for minor services rendered in the ordinary course of business, no director has received or become entitled
to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Club or a related corporation with the director or
with a firm of which they are a member or with a Club in which they have a substantial financial interest.

lndemnification and lnsurance of Officers and Auditors

The Club has not, during or since the end of the financial year, for any person who is or has been an
officer orauditor of the Club indemnified or made any relevant agreementfor indemnifyinB against a
liability incurred as an officer or auditor including costs and expenses in successfully defending legal
proceedings; or paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against liability incurred
as an officer or auditor for costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings with the exception of insurance
premiums paid to insure each of the directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in
defending any legal proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in a capacity of director of the
club, other than conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to the club.

Proceedings on Behalf of Club

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Club or intervene in any
proceedings to which the Club is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Club for
all or any part of those proceedings.

The Club was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
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After Balance Day Events

No other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations ofthe Club, the results ofthose operations orthe state of
affairs of the Club in future financialyears.

Membership Liability

The CIub is limited by guarantee without share capital. The number of members as at 31 December 2019

was2,502 (2018: 1,350). lf the Club is wound up, the constitution states that each member of the Club is

liable to contribute a maximum of S1 each towards meeting any outstanding liabilities of the Club. At 31

December 2019 the maximum total amount that members of the Club would be liable to contribute if
the Club is wound up is $2,502.

Real Property

All real property as defined in section 41J of the Registered Club Act (NSW) 1976 owned bythe Club is core
property. The Club does not have any non-core property.

Environmental lssues

The Club's operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and
State Legislation.

The board believes that the Club has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental
req uirements and is not awa re of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the
Club.

Dividends Paid or Recommended

The constitution of the Club prohibits the distribution of profits to the members. Accordingly, no dividend
or distributions were or could be paid to members.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

Director: Rowan Keast

Dated this 18th Day of March 2020

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

Under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2019 there have
bee n:

o No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements ofthe Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

r No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Paul Morris - Registered Company Auditor

OnTrack Chartered Accountants

Dated this 18th Day of March 2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

NOTE

107,728

750
7 L,tt5,O63

1,115,813

L,223,541

2018

s

14,373
18,862

34,559

67,894

750
1,L17,999

1,t18,749

1,,786,641

2019
s

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

lnventories on Hand

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Shares in lndependent Liquor Group
Property, Plant and Equipment

TOTAL NON.CU RRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Borrowings
Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

MEMBERS'EQUITY

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Retained Profits/( Deficit)

TOTAL MEMBERS' EQUITY

4 47,410
5 27,895

6 32,423

8

9

10

92,976
1,9,974

12,195

725,t4s

54,824
13,909

10,080

78,813

501,579

501,579

440,978

440,978

5t9,79L626,724

L2S,8L?_ ___999!tl

596,8\7

These financial statements should be read in con.junction with the accompanying notes

7(a) 5e2,000
(9s,183)

692,000
(2s,148)

666,852
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive lncome

For the Year Ended 31 December2019

Revenue

Employee benefits expense
Finance expenses
Cost of goods sold
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Profit/(loss) before income tax
lncome tax expense
Total comprehensive income for the year

2019
Balance at 1 January 2019
Profit/(loss) attributable to members
Balance at 31 December 2019

2018
Balance at 1 January 2018
Profit/(loss) attributable to members
Balance at 31 December 2018

2019
Note S

7,231,891
(383,701)

(28,982)
(447,s691

(s8,876)
(382,798)

(70,03s)

201,8

s
1,165,116
(3s3,466)
(Ls,9s7)

(398,62s)
(50,2s0)

(3s 1,823)
(s,00s)

__lz9&!)_ ______84e9_

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 31 December 2019

Note Retained
Earnings

S

(25,1.48)

(70,03s)

(9s,183)

Total

s

(2s,1.481

(70,03s)

___1911931_

(20,1431 (20,143)
(s,oos) (s,00s)

--9 39-- ---(2sl48t-

These financial statements should be read in con.junction with the accompanying notes
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2019

s

1,,352,55L
(1,308,234)

(28,676)

2018

S

1,087,055
( 1,040,80s)

(1s,es7)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from members and customers
Payments to suppliers/employees
Finance Costs

Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for property, plant and equipment

Net cash provided from/(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings

Net cash provided from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year 15

75,641 30,293

126,0821 (208,029)

(26,082)

75,070
(31,592)

(208,029)

357,505
(209,637)

43,478

33,031

14,373

t47,868

(29,868)

44,241

47,4L0 _____]!3r3_

These financial statements should be read ln conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

The financial statements are forthe Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited as an individual entity. The

Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited is a public company limited by guarantee, incorporated and

domiciled in Australia.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors on 18th March 2020.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance

with the Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of theAustralianAccounting

StandardsBoard(AASB) andtheCorporationsAct200l. TheClubisanot-for-profitentityforfinancial
reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would

result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events

and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements
are presented below. They have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements, with the exception of the cash flow information, have been prepared on an

accrual basis and are based on historical costs modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair

value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented

in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies:

a. Revenue and other income

The Club recognises revenue on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Club expects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services. The Club achieves this by identifying all performance obligations,
determining an appropriate transaction price and recognising any revenue as and when control of

the performance obligation is transferred.

Sale of goods - revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be

the point in time when performance obligations are transferred.

Rendering of services - revenue from the performance obligation in relation to rendering of services is

recognised upon delivery of the service to the customer.

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank

overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial
position.

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows
and are presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

c. Property, Plant & Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any

accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Property
Freehold land is measured at directors'valuation. Buildings are measured on a cost basis, less subsequent
depreciation charges.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured using the cost or deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and/or
amortisation and impairment losses.

Plant and equipment - impairment

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by dlrectors to ensure it is not in
excess ofthe recoverable amount from the assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis

71.
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of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' employment and subsequent

disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining
recoverable amounts.

ln assessing value in use, the Club has used depreciated replacement cost since the Club is a not-for-
profit entity where the future economic benefits of its assets are not primarily dependent on the
assets ability to generate net cash flows and the Club would, if deprived of the asset, replace its
remaining future economic benefits.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings, but excluding freehold land, is

depreciated on a straight-line basis overthe asset's useful life to the Club commencing from the time the
asset is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are shown below:

Buildings 2.5o/o

Plant and Equipment 70 - 25%

Right of use assets held under leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as

owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These
gains and losses are included in the statement of profit and loss.

d. Leases

The Club assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception ofthe contract.

The Club recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease

arranBements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of
12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of
office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Club recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. lf this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Club uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

o Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured usingthe indexor rate
at the commencement date

o The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees

o The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options
. Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to

terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position,

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made.

The Club remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever:

. The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a

change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

1.2
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o The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due
to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)

. A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated overthe shorter period oflease term and useful life ofthe underlying
asset. lf a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right of-use asset reflects
that the Club expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right of-use asset is depreciated over the
useful lifeoftheunderlyingasset. Thedepreciationstartsatthecommencementdateof thelease.
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated statement offinancial
position.

The Club applies AASB 136 lmpairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired
and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the'Property, plant and equipment'
policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line "Other
expenses" in profit or loss.

As a practical expedient, AASB 15 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead
account for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Club has not
used this practical expedient. For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Club allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

e. Financiallnstruments

lnitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Club becomes a party to the contractual
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the Club commits itself
to either purchase or sell the asset.

Financial instruments (exceptfortrade receivables) are initially measured at fairvalue plus transaction
costs, except where the instrument is classified 'at fair value through profit or loss', in which case
transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately.
Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not
contain a significant financing component.
Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified upon
initial recognition into the following categories:

o Amortised cost
. Equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
o Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented
within finance income or finance costs, except for impairment of trade receivables which are
disclosed with other expenses.

13
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Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:
. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

o The business model for managing the financial asset

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the asset meets the following conditions (and are
not designated as fair value through profit and loss);

. The financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows
o The contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initlally measured at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs unless the Club designated a financial liability at fair value through profit and loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities other than financial guarantees are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. All interest related charges and, if applicable, changes in the
instruments fair values that are reported in profit or loss are lncluded within finance costs or finance
income.

lmpairment of financial assets

The impairment requirements as applicable under AASB 9 use more forward looking information to
recognise expected credit losses. Executed credit losses are the probability weighted estimate of
creditlossesovertheexpectedlifeof afinancial instrument. Acreditlossisthedifferencebetween
all contractual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all discounted at
the origlnal effective interest rate of the financial instrument.

f. Finance Costs

Finance cost includes all interest related expenses, otherthan those arisingfrom financial assets atfairvalue
through profit or loss.

g. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the CIub has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the outflow required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the unwinding of the discount is taken to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

h. Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the Club's lia bility for em ployee be nef its a rising f rom se rvices ren de red by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly
settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is

settl ed.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year afterthe end of the reporting period
have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those
benefits. ln determiningthe liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the
probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cash flows are discounted using
market yields on high quality corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit
agencies, with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows. Changes in the
measurement of the liabilityare recognised in profit or loss.

i. lncome Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt f rom income tax under division 50
of the lncome Tax Assessment Act 1997.

1.4
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j. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements
regardingassumptionsaboutcurrent and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of
preparing the financial statements, however as additional information is known the actual results
may differ from the estimates.

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The CIub assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the
Club that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are

reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

k. lnventories

lnventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

l. Volunteer Services

Without in any way dismissing the invaluable contribution that volunteers make to the Club, the Club

has elected not to recognise the financial value ofthose services in the financial statements, as

provided for in AASB 1058: lncome of Not-for-Profit Entities, as the fair value of those services
cannot be measured reliably.

m. lnitial Application of New Accounting Standards

The Club has adopted the following new accounting standards:

AASB 16: Leases

This standard introduces a single lessee accounting model that eliminates the requirement for leases

to be classified as operating or finance leases.

The main changes introduced by the new Standard are as follows:
. recognition of a right-of-use asset and liability for all leases (excluding short-term leases

with less than 12 months of tenure and leases relating to low-value assets);

o depreciation of right-of-use assets in line with AASB 115: Property, Plant and Equipment in
profit or loss and unwinding of the liability in principal and interest components;

o inclusion of variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate in the initial
measurement of the lease liability using the index or rate at the commencement date;

. application of a practical expedient to permit a lessee to elect not to separate non-lease
components and instead account for all components as a lease; and

o inclusion of additional disclosure requirements.
The Club has elected to recognise the cumulative effect of retrospective application as an adjustment
to opening equity on the date of initial application.

n. Goods and Services Tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),

except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(Aro).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of
cash flows arising from investing and financial activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the
ATO is classified as operating cashflows.
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

20!9
s

2018

s

2. Revenue and Other lncome

Revenue f rom continuing operations
Sales Revenue
- Sale of Goods
- Poker machine revenue
- Other gaming and promotions
- Members'Subscriptions
- Donations
- Other Revenue

Total Revenue

Expe nses

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

Cost of sales

Other expenses

Employee benefits expense

Depreciation and amortisation
Gaming Expenses

Entertainment and promotion expenses

Finance Costs

Other expenses

Total Expenses

4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand

Cash at Bank

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade Receivables

Other receivables

1,097,170
67,563
20,805

5,473
17,738
23,74L

1,231,891

L,023,920
76,312
24,39t

3,596

18,865
18,032

1, 165,1 16

__]81,8s1_ J-l,116_

2019

s

447,569

383,701

58,876

63,029

84,650

28,982
260,267

__1,32r,071_

2018

5

398,625

353,466

50,250

63,982

61,9t2
75,9s7

225,929

JE!E}_

6,363

41,,047

7,267
7,172

1.4,37347,410

5.

1,540
25,355

785

18,077

27,895 78,862

lmpairment of receivables

The Club applles the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by MSB 9, which

permitstheuseofthelifetimeexpectedlossprovisionforalltradereceivables. Tomeasuretheexpected

credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days

past due. Notwithstanding adopting the simplified approach under MSB 9, there has been no material

change in the loss allowance provisions as at 31 December 2019 incorporating forward looking information.
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December

I nvento ri es

lnventory on Hand

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

a. Land and buildings

Freehold Land - at Board of Directors valuation

Club Buildings - at cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Land and Buildings

Land Valuation
The directors have based the valuation of
as at 28'h September 2018 wasS764,000.

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment - at cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total plant and equipment

Right of use assets
Equipment - at cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total right of use assets

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

the land on the NSW Valuer General's valuation which

2019

2019

S

32,423

2018

S

___31ft9_

700,000

5s6,164
(300,40s)

255,759

955,759

700,000

556,164
(314,308)

241,,856

941,856

b.
361,953 457,517

(219,1,061 (29s,2771

L42,857 162,240

37,290
(6,940)

30,3s0

--L11i491 _Jttryes

Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between

the beginning and end of the current financial year:

Land at Buildings at Plant &
Valuation Cost Equipment

at Cost

SSS
Balance at Beginning of year
Additions
Depreciation expense
Balance at the end of the year

700,000 255,759 1,62,240 L,LL7,999
s5,940 s5,940

- (13.904) (44.972\ (58.876)

700.000 241.855 173.208 1,115.063
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 201'9

8. P ayables
Cu rrent
Trade Creditors

Sundry payables and accrued expenses

Borrowings
Current
lnsurance Funding Loan

Bank Overdraft
Lease Liabilities
Bank Loan

2019

s

50,390
42,586

9,933

7,369
2,672

t9,974

23,253
478,326

2018

s

27,889
26,935

6,396
7,513

_:l e7i_ _:!.824-

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30

days. The carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation

of fair value due to the short-term nature of the balances'

9.

13,909

440,978

10.

tt.

Non-Current
Lease Liabilities
Bank Loan

_j!1lrs_ 44oll3_

(a) The bank loan facility was re.negotiated on 21'11.1-/2019 with a revised limit of 5481,000. This

loanhasa15yearterm,withinterestonlyrecaymentsrequiredforthefirstl2months.

(b) The bankloan facilities are secured by a registered first mortgage over the property situated at 21

Byron Bay Rd, Bangalow (title reference2/1)36845\'

(c) Leasing commitments

Payable not later than one Year

Payable between one year and five years

PaYable greater than five Years

Provisions
Cu rrent
Employee Benefits

Key Management Personnel Remuneratlon

The total compensation paid to key management personnel is as

follows:
Directors
Other key management Personnel

2019 2018

5s
8,460 6,9t2

24,675 27,648

33,135 34,560

1? 1qq 10.080

t95,438 777,152

195.438 I77,t52
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2019

12. Contingent Liabilities
The directors believe there are no contingent liabilities at balance date.

13. Events Occurring After the Reporting Period
The financial report was authorised for issue on 18th March 2020 by the board of directors.
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected
or may significantly affect the operations of the Club, the results of those operations, orthe state of
affairs of the Club in future financial years.

t4. Related Party Transactions

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of the year are:

Gerry Swain Jeff Nolan lan Holden

Atosha Clancy Rowan Keast Rebekah Harwood

Jayd Crowe Sonny Singh lan Dall

Simon Evans

From time to time the directors of the Club, or director related entities may purchase/supply goods or
services from/to the Club. These purchases/supplies are on the same terms and conditions as those

entered into by other club employees, members, customers or suppliers.

15. Members'Guarantee

The Club is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee

without share capital. lf the Club is wound up, the constitution states that each member is

required to contribute a maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding liabilities of the

Club. At 31 December 2019, the number of members was 2,502.

15. Financial Risk Management

Financial Risk

The Club's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable,
bank loans and overdrafts and leases.

The totals of each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as

detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Bank loans
Bank overdrafts
Lease liabilities
Total financial liabilities

2079 201,8ss
47,4t0 L4,373
27,89s 18,862

75,305 33,235

92,974 54,824
490,931 440,978

I,513
30,622

614,527 503,315
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN:97 001 017 938

DI RECTORS' DECLARATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

ln accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Bangalow Bowling and Sports Club Ltd, the Directors of

the Club declare that:

The accompanying financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 8 to 19, are in accordance

with the Corporations Act 2001 and:

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 3L December 2019 and of the

performance for the year ended on that date of the Club.

ln the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe thatthe Club will be able to pay

its debts as and when they become due andpayable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Director

Rowan Keast

Directo r

Dated 18th March 2020

2.
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BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN:97 001 017 938
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

Report on the Financial RePort

Auditor's Opinion

I have audited the financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd (the Club), which comprises the

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year

the n ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a su m mary of sign ificant accou nting policies a n d the
directors' declaration.

ln my opinion, the accompanying financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Ltd is in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i. givingatrueandfairviewof theClub'sfinancial positionasat3lDecember2019andof its
financial performance for the year then ended; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and

the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

section of my report. I am independent of the Club in accordance with the auditor independence
requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional
and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are

relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

I confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given

to the directors of the Club, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this
auditor's report.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the Club are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Australian Accou nting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements a nd the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Club's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Club orto cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of the financial report.

21-



BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

ABN: 97 001 017 938
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

BANGALOW BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LTD

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professionaljudgement and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. lalso:

r ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedu res that are ap propriate i n the ci rcu msta nces, b ut not for the pu rpose of expressi ng a n

opinion on the effectiveness of the Club's internalcontrol;

. Evaluatetheappropriatenessof accountingpoliciesusedandthereasonablenessof accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directon;

. Concludeontheappropriatenessof thedirectors'useof thegoingconcernbasisof accountingand,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club's ability to continue as a going concern. lf I

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Clubto cease to continue as

a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whetherthe financial report representsthe underlyingtransactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. I remain solely responsible for
my audit opinion.

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controlthat I identify
during my audit.

Paul Morris - Registered Company Auditor
OnTrack Chartered Accounta nts

L8th March 2020
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Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited ABN 97 001 017 938

I have heard football commentators describe some matches as a ‘game of 2 halves’, well 2020 for the Bowlo turned 

out to be exactly this!

After the challenges of the first half of the year with COVID-19, when reopening the Club we were overwhelmed with 

support from our membership, community and traveling public.  In the second half of the year we experienced 

positive trading figures in both the bar and kitchen, with the Xmas period being the busiest on record for the Club.

Bangalow has always been an amazing town with a strong local community, it is now a destination envied and sought 

after by many. The Bowlo has now more than ever the opportunity to provide the areas best family and community 

friendly venue, which is what our current Board and Management are committed to delivering.

A huge thank you to all the members and community who supported us during our difficult days.

Thank you to current Board members for your time and effort over the past 12 months, particularly the COVID-19 

Response Committee for your efforts and dedication during the COVID-19 shut down period.

Thank you to the Men’s Bowling Club who are always at the ready to assist the Club to keep things rolling along.  

A very special thank you to our General Manager Chris Watson for the outstanding job he did with shutting down and 

reopening the Club, opening a new kitchen, rebuilding a new team and delivering on our promise that “We will be 

back”.

Rowan Keast - President

President's Report

2020 will for everyone around the world be remembered as the year COVID-19 entered our daily lives. The impact 

and scale of this global pandemic having never been experienced in the modern era.

It was impossible to avoid the direct impact that COVID-19 had on our community Club due to the government 

mandated shut down of all hospitality venues at the end of March. Like all other venues around the state and country 

we were plunged into very uncertain times very quickly.

Despite these significant challenges, the Board and Management responded swiftly and implemented a plan of action 

to close the Club. This included appointing a COVID-19 Response Committee and launching our “We will be back” 

campaign.

The COVID-19 Response committee created a weekly cashflow forecast for an initial 6-month period. We met every 

Friday (via video meeting) and ran through a specific Agenda, including Clubs NSW updates, local, state and federal 

government updates and mapped our financial forecast with actual weekly figures which allowed the committee to 

make well considered decisions within a formal framework.  

I believe this committee’s appointment was a crucial step in navigating the Club through a very uncertain and 

challenging time. Undoubtedly, the hardest part of this process was having to stand down all staff and management 

with no real certainty of ‘if’ or ‘when’ we would be able to reopen.

During our period of closure we were delighted to have staff members on JobKeeper as well as other members of the 

Club donate their time and services to giving the place a thorough clean and refresh. Thank you to all these people for 

your generosity.

When the time came to reopen the Club in July we were presented with a new challenge. Our caterer One Green Acre 

made the difficult decision to not reopen with us due to the continued uncertainty of COVID-19. As a result, the Board 

and Management made the decision to take over the kitchen, and after a brief period of scheduling weekly mobile 

food operators to feed our hungry patrons we were delighted to present ‘The Bowlo Kitchen’, with our own fulltime 

employed Head Chef and kitchen team.
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Ian Holden - Treasurer

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Atosha Clancy - Vice President

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Club is to provide a viable community and sports club for the people of Bangalow 

and surrounds.

Achieving Entity’s Objectives

The principal activities assisted in achieving the Club’s objectives by encouraging members and patrons to use 

the Club’s facilities.

Measurement of Performance

The Club measures its performance by profit and patron satisfaction. Performance is also measured against 

budget forecasts. Key performance indicators used by the Club in monitoring performance include review of 

gross profit, profit to turnover and profit to income percentages.

Company Secretary

The position of Company Secretary at the end of the financial year was held by Christopher Watson who was 

appointed to that position on 18 February 2019.

Objectives

The long and short term objectives of the Club are to ensure that the Club’s financial position remains sound 

in both the short and long term so that members and patrons can enjoy their club for years to come.

Strategy

The strategy that the Club employs to achieve those objectives is to:

Carefully monitor income and expenditure to improve operating profit;

Introduce new ideas that will attract more people to the club to improve income streams; and

Promote the above objectives at every opportunity.

Rowan Keast - President

Sonny Singh (resigned 3 August 2020) Rebekah Harwood Jayd Crowe

Ian Dall Simon Evans

There was an impact on the Club as a result of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. The Club was eligible 

for some of the economic stimulus measures provided by the Australian and New South Wales governments, 

and these amounts have been recognised in the financial report as required.

Directors' Report

Your directors present their report on the Club for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of the year, are:

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise 

stated.

Review of Operations

2020 Financial Report Page 4
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2020 2019

$ $

Total Income 1,653,594 1,231,891

Total Expenses (1,670,538) (1,301,926)

Net Profit/(Loss) (16,944) (70,035)

Net cash provided from operating activities 97,853 15,335

Director's Report

The board believes that the Club has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental 

requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental requirements as they apply to the Club.

No significant changes in the Club’s state of affairs occurred during the financial year.

Indemnification and Insurance of Officers and Auditors

The Club has not, during or since the end of the financial year, for any person who is or has been an officer or 

auditor of the Club indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability incurred 

as an officer or auditor including costs and expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings; or paid or 

agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract insuring against liability incurred as an officer or auditor for 

costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings with the exception of insurance premiums paid to insure each of 

the directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in defending any legal proceedings 

arising out of their conduct while acting in a capacity of director of the Club, other than conduct involving a 

wilful breach of duty in relation to the Club.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Club

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Club or intervene in any 

proceedings to which the Club is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Club for all 

or any part of those proceedings.

The Club was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.

Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may

significantly affect the operations of the Club, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Club 

in future financial years.

Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies

There are no planned changes in the operations of the Club which will significantly affect the results of the 

operations in future financial years.

Environmental Issues

The Club’s operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State 

Legislation.

Dividends Paid or Recommended

The constitution of the Club prohibits the distribution of profits to the members. Accordingly, no dividend or 

distributions were or could be paid to members.

Summary of Performance

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
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No. Eligible to 

attend

Number 

Attended

Number 

Attended

12 11 1

12 10 1

Ian Holden - Treasurer 12 12 1

7 6 -

12 9 1

12 6 -

12 11 1

12 10 1

Director: Director:

Dated:

Real Property

All real property as defined in section 41J of the Registered Club Act (NSW) 1976 owned by the Club is core 

property. The Club does not have any non-core property.

Rowan Keast - President Atosha Clancy - Vice President

Membership Liability

The Club is limited by guarantee without share capital. The number of members as at 31 December 2020 was 

884. If the Club is wound up, the constitution states that each member of the Club is liable to contribute a 

maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding liabilities of the Club. At 31 December 2020 the 

maximum total amount that members of the Club would be liable to contribute if the Club is wound up is 

$884.

Sonny Singh (resigned 3 August 2020) -

Rebekah Harwood 1

Jayd Crowe 1

Ian Dall 1

Simon Evans 1

Director's Report

12th April 2021

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 31 December 2020 has been received and can 

be found on page 28 of the financial report.

This directors’ report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Directors Benefits

No directors have a financial interest in any contract or proposed contract with the Club.

In accordance with Chapter 2E of the Corporations Act, since the end of the previous financial year, except for 

minor services rendered in the ordinary course of business, no director has received or become entitled to 

receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Club or a related corporation with the director or with a 

firm of which they are a member or with a Club in which they have a substantial financial interest.

Meetings of Directors

During the financial year, 12 ordinary and 1 special meeting of directors were held.  Attendances by each 

director during the year were as follows:

Directors Meetings Special Meetings

Rowan Keast - President

    No. Eligible to 

attend

1

Atosha Clancy - Vice President 1

1
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 Note 2020 2019

$ $

Revenue 2 1,404,765 1,231,891

Other Income 2 248,829 -               

Employee benefits expense (658,149) (383,701)

Finance expenses (23,113) (28,982)

Cost of goods sold (495,060) (447,569)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (62,677) (58,876)

Other expenses (431,539) (382,798)

(16,944) (70,035)

Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to ordinary activities -               -               

(16,944) (70,035)

 Note 2020 2019

$ $

(16,944) (70,035)

-               -               

-               -               

(16,944) (70,035)

(16,944) (70,035)

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before

income tax expense

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after

income tax expense

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to members 

of the Club

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income for the year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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Note 2020 2019

$ $

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 144,106 55,281

Trade and other receivables 6 914 2,737

Inventories 7 33,848 32,423

Other assets 8 21,372 17,287

Total Current Assets 200,240 107,728

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 1,089,870 1,115,063

Financial Assets 10 750 750

Total Non Current Assets 1,090,620 1,115,813

Total Assets 1,290,861 1,223,541

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 139,793 92,976

Employee benefits 12 21,185 12,195

Borrowings 13 52,089 19,974

Total Current Liabilities 213,067 125,145

Non Current Liabilities

Borrowings 13 497,922 501,579

Total Non Current Liabilities 497,922 501,579

Total Liabilities 710,988 626,724

Net Assets 579,873 596,817

Shareholders Equity

Asset Revaluation Reserve 692,000 692,000

Retained Profits / (Accumulated Losses) (112,127) (95,183)

579,873 596,817

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT  31 DECEMBER 2020

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Asset 

Revaluation 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings
Total

$ $ $

692,000 (25,148) 666,852

(70,035) (70,035)

-                (70,035) (70,035)

-               -               

692,000 (95,183) 596,817

692,000 (95,183) 596,817

-                (16,944) (16,944)

-                (16,944) (16,944)

-               -               

692,000 (112,127) 579,873

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31 DECEMBER 2020

Balance at 1 January 2019

Comprehensive income

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 

the members of the Club

Dividends Paid

Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2020

Comprehensive income

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to 

the members of the Club

Dividends Paid

Balance at 31 December 2020
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Note 2020 2019

$ $

1,406,588 1,352,551

(1,285,622) (1,308,234)

Finance Costs (23,113) (28,982)

97,853 15,335

(37,485) (26,082)

(37,485) (26,082)

Proceeds from borrowings 46,496 75,070

Repayment of borrowings (18,039) (31,592)

28,457 43,478

88,825 32,731

55,281 14,373

6 144,106 55,281

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31 DECEMBER 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from Customers

Payments to Suppliers and Employees

Cash flows from investing activities

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided from investing activities

Payments for property, plant & equipment

Cash flows from financing activities
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a.

b.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the 12th April 2021 by the directors of the Club.

Income Tax

The Club is exempt from income tax under division 50 of the Income Tax assessment Act 1997.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the Australian Accounting Standards Board 

has concluded would result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about 

transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 

statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market participant’s ability 

to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market participant that would use the asset 

in its highest and best use.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Club measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring 

basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard.

Fair value is the price the Club would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer a liability in 

an orderly (ie unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and willing market participants 

at the measurement date.

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing information is 

used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having regard to the 

characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and liabilities that are not traded in 

an active market are determined using one or more valuation techniques. These valuation techniques 

maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data.

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for the asset or 

liability (ie the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the asset or liability) or, in the 

absence of such a market, the most advantageous market available to the entity at the end of the reporting 

period (ie the market that maximises the receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments 

made to transfer the liability, after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs).

The financial statements cover Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited (the Club) as an individual entity. 

Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited is a public company limited by guarantee, incorporated and 

domiciled in Australia. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with 

Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards 

Board and the Corporations Act 2001 . The Club is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes 

under Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accrual basis and are 

based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current 

assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been 

rounded to the nearest dollar.
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b.

c.

Class of Fixed Asset

Buildings

Plant and equipment

d.

Without in any way dismissing the invaluable contribution that volunteers make to the Club, the Club has 

elected not to recognise the financial value of those services in the financial statements, as provided for in 

AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, as the fair value of those services cannot be measured 

reliably.   

Volunteer Services

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is 

greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the 

estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. A formal assessment 

of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(g) for details of 

impairment).

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets but excluding 

freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life to the entity commencing 

from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of 

either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Depreciation Rate

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 

reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These 

gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. When revalued assets are 

sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

2.5%

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (continued)

The fair value of liabilities and the entity’s own equity instruments (excluding those related to share-based 

payment arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer 

of such financial instruments, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are 

held as assets. Where this information is not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where 

significant, are detailed in the respective note to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where 

applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Plant and equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

10 - 25%
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e.

*

*

*

*

*

*

f.

lease payments under extension options if lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to 

terminate the lease.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability as mentioned 

above, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date as well as any initial direct costs. 

The subsequent measurement of the right-of-use assets is at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset whichever is 

the shortest. Where a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset 

reflects that the Club anticipates to exercise a purchase option, the specific asset is depreciated over the 

useful life of the underlying asset.

The Club does not act as a lessor in relation to lease contracts.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Club becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the Club commits itself 

to either the purchase or the sale of the asset (ie trade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 

costs, except where the instrument is classified "at fair value through profit or loss", in which case 

transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active 

market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, valuation techniques are adopted.

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (the Club as Lessee)

At inception of a contract, the Club assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If there is a lease present, 

a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability is recognised by the Club where the Club is a lessee. 

However, all contracts that are classified as short-term leases (lease with a remaining lease term of 12 

months or less) and leases of low value assets are recognised as an operating expense on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease.

Initially the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be paid at 

commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate 

cannot be readily determined, the Club uses the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows:

fixed lease payments less any lease incentives;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at 

the commencement date;

the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of purchase options, if lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
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f.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

A financial liability is held for trading if it is:

incurred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in the near term;

part of a portfolio where there is an actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or

a derivative financial instrument (except for a derivative that is in a financial guarantee contract or a 

derivative that is in an effective hedging relationship).

Any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they 

are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

The change in fair value of the financial liability attributable to changes in the issuer's credit risk is taken to 

other comprehensive income and is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Instead, it is transferred 

to retained earnings upon derecognition of the financial liability.

If taking the change in credit risk to other comprehensive income enlarges or creates an accounting 

mismatch, these gains or losses should be taken to profit or loss rather than other comprehensive income.

A financial liability cannot be reclassified.

amortised cost; or

fair value through profit and loss.

A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit and loss if the financial liability is:

a contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination to which AASB 3 :   Business 

Combinations applies;

held for trading; or

initially designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of 

allocating interest expense to profit or loss over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability. That is, it is the rate 

that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to the net 

carrying amount at initial recognition.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a 

significant financing component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified in paragraph 63 of 

AASB 15 :   Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at:
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f.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates; and

the business model for managing the financial asset comprises both contractual cash flows collection 

and the selling of the financial asset.

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the measurement conditions of amortised cost and fair 

value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Club initially designates a financial instrument as measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (often referred to as 

an "accounting mismatch") that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or 

recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases;

it is in accordance with the documented risk management or investment strategy and information 

about the groupings is documented appropriately, so the performance of the financial liability that is 

part of a group of financial liabilities or financial assets can be managed and evaluated consistently on 

a fair value basis; and

it is a hybrid contract that contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows 

otherwise required by the contract.

The initial measurement of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss is a one-time option on 

initial classification and is irrevocable until the financial asset is derecognised.

Derecognition

fair value through other comprehensive income; or

fair value through profit or loss.

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria:

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and

the business model for managing the financial assets.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised cost:

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from the 

statement of financial position.

the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income:

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are subsequently measured at:

amortised cost;
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f.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss; or

equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 

income;

lease receivables; and

loan commitments that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Loss allowance is not recognised for:

All the following criteria need to be satisfied for the derecognition of a financial asset:

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred;

all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and

the Club no longer controls the asset (ie it has no practical ability to make unilateral decisions to sell 

the asset to a third party).

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's 

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a debt instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, the 

cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to 

profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity that the Club elected to classify as at fair value through other 

comprehensive income, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation 

reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment

The Club recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on:

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (ie when the obligation in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one with substantially 

modified terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of a financial liability, is treated as an 

extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration 

paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or 

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset 

is transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.
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f.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

This approach is applicable to:

trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions that are within the scope of AASB 15:   

Revenue from Contracts with Customers , and which do not contain a significant financing 

component; and

lease receivables.

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables is used, taking into 

consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss (ie diversity of its customer base, appropriate 

groupings of its historical loss experience, etc).

Purchased or originated credit-impaired approach

For a financial assets that are considered to be credit-impaired (not on acquisition or originations), the Club 

measures any change in its lifetime expected credit loss as the difference between the asset’s gross carrying 

amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original 

effective interest rate. Any adjustment is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

the simplified approach;

the purchased or originated credit-impaired approach; and

low credit risk operational simplification.

General approach

Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Club assesses whether the financial instruments 

are credit-impaired, and:

if the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the 

Club measures the loss allowance of the financial instruments at an amount equal to the lifetime 

expected credit losses; and

if there has been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Club measures the 

loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

Simplified approach

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting period, but 

instead requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times.

Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due and all 

cash flows expected to be received, all discounted at the original effective interest rate of the financial 

instrument.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

The Club uses the following approaches to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9: Financial 

Instruments :

the general approach;
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f.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

For financial assets that are unrecognised (eg loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial guarantees), a 

provision for loss allowance is created in the statement of financial position to recognise the loss 

allowance.

A financial asset is considered to have low credit risk if:

there is a low risk of default by the borrower;

the borrower has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term, may, but not necessarily, 

reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

A financial asset is not considered to carry low credit risk merely due to existence of collateral, or because 

a borrower has a lower risk of default than the risk inherent in the financial assets, or lower than the credit 

risk of the jurisdiction in which it operates.

Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements

At each reporting date, the Club recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an impairment gain or 

loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance relating to 

that asset.

Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value with 

changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. The amount in relation to change in credit 

risk is transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss at every reporting period.

where a lender has granted to the borrower a concession, due to the borrower's financial difficulty, 

that the lender would not otherwise consider;

the likelihood that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Low credit risk operational simplification approach

If a financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the initial reporting date, the Club assumes that 

the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition and, accordingly, it can continue to 

recognise a loss allowance of 12-month expected credit loss.

In order to make such a determination that the financial asset has low credit risk, the Club applies its 

internal credit risk ratings or other methodologies using a globally comparable definition of low credit risk.

Evidence of credit impairment includes:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

a breach of contract (eg default or past due event);
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g.

h. Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the Club’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee 

benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 

months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, 

including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) 

amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The Club’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are 

recognised as part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not expected to be 

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render 

the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the expected 

future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage 

and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by 

reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on corporate bonds that have maturity dates 

that approximate the terms of the obligations. Any remeasurements for changes in assumptions of 

obligations for other long-term employee benefits are recognised in profit or loss in the periods in which 

the changes occur.

The Club’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current provisions in its 

statement of financial position, except where the Club does not have an unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are 

presented as current provisions.

Impairment of Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Club assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be 

impaired. The assessment will include considering external sources of information and internal sources of 

information, including dividends received from subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures deemed to be out 

of pre-acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by 

comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of 

disposal and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over 

its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued 

amount in accordance with another Standard (eg in accordance with the revaluation model in AASB 116 :   

Property, Plant and Equipment ). Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 

decrease in accordance with that other Standard.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Club estimates the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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h.

i.

j.

k.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of 

promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Club expects to 

receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as 

follows:

Identify the contract with the customer

Identify the performance obligations

Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred

Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the

timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in 

the recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.

All employees of the Club receive defined contribution superannuation entitlements, for which the Club 

pays the fixed superannuation guarantee contribution (currently 9.5% of the employee’s average ordinary 

salary) to the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All contributions in respect of employees’ defined 

contribution entitlements are recognised as an expense when they become payable. The Club’s obligation 

with respect to employees’ defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid 

superannuation guarantee contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid 

superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid 

when the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the Club’s statement of financial 

position.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Club has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, 

for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably 

measured.

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end 

of the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 

are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Revenue Recognition

Employee Benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution superannuation benefits
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k.

l.

m.

n.

o.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the Club that remain 

unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts 

normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability. Trade and other payables are initially measured 

at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 

incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount 

of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 

statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or 

financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash 

flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers.

Revenue Recognition (continued)

None of the revenue streams of the Club have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12

months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Grant revenue

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and all grant conditions will be met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income 

over the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. Grants relating to assets 

are credited to deferred income at fair value and are credited to income over the expected useful life of the 

asset on a straight-line basis.

Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Club is entitled to it.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due from customers for goods sold and services performed in 

the ordinary course of business. Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the 

reporting period are classified as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(g) for further 

discussion on determination of impairment losses.
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p.

q.

2020 2019

$ $

Note 2: Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from continuing operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

- Sale of Goods 1,278,759 1,097,170

- Poker Machines 60,635 67,563

- Other gaming and promotions 13,195 20,806

Members Subscriptions 8,959 5,473

Donations 21,539 17,738

Other Revenue 21,676 23,141

Total Revenue 1,404,765 1,231,891

Other Income

Government grants 200,620 -               

Insurance claim 48,209 -               

Total Other Income 248,829 -               

There have been considerable economic impacts in Australia and globally arising from the outbreak of the 

COVID-19 virus, and Government actions to reduce the spread of the virus.  At the date of signing the 

financial statements the Directors are unable to determine what financial effects (if any) the outbreak of the 

virus could have on the Club's performance in the coming financial year.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on 

historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of 

future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the 

Club.

Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Club assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the 

Club that may be indicative of impairment triggers.  Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are reassessed 

using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions.

Key estimates - COVID-19

Comparative Figures

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 

presentation for the current financial year. 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2020 Financial Report Page 22



Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited ABN 97 001 017 938

2020 2019

Note 3: Result for the Year $ $

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

Cost of sales 495,060 447,569

Other expenses:

Employee benefits expense 658,149 383,701

Finance expenses 23,113 28,982

Depreciation and amortisation expense 62,677 58,876

Gaming Expenses 47,328 63,029

Entertainment and promotional expenses 33,992 84,650

Bad Debts 2,618 -               

Other expenses 347,601 235,119

1,670,538 1,301,926

Note 4: Key Management Personnel Compensation

2020 2019

$ $

191,651 196,438

Note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash at bank 137,114 48,918

Cash on Hand 6,992 6,363

144,106 55,281

Reconciliation of cash

2020 2019

$ $

Cash and cash equivalents 144,106 55,281

Cash at the end of financial year as included in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related 

items in the statement of financial position as follows:

The totals of remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Club during the year are as follows:

Key management personnel compensation

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
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Note 6: Trade and Other Receivables 2020 2019

$ $

Current

Trade receivables 640 1,540

Other receivables 274 1,198

914 2,737

2020 2019

Note 7: Inventories $ $

33,848 32,423
33,848 32,423

Note 8: Other Assets

21,372 17,287
21,372 17,287

Note 9: Property, Plant & Equipment

Land and Buildings

Freehold Land - at Director's valuation 700,000 700,000

Buildings - at cost 556,164 556,164

Less Accumulated Depreciation (328,212) (314,308)

227,952 241,856

Total Land and Buildings 927,952 941,856

Plant and Equipment

Plant and Equipment – at cost 399,448 361,963

Less accumulated depreciation (260,421) (219,106)

139,027 142,857

Right of Use Assets

Equipment – at cost 37,290 37,290

Less accumulated amortisation (14,398) (6,940)

22,892 30,350

1,089,870 1,115,063

Current

Current

Other inventories for sale - at cost

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to 

the short-term nature of the balances.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable 

in the financial statements.

Prepayments
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Note 9: Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

Movements in carrying amounts

Land and 

Buildings

Plant and 

Equipment

Right of Use 

Assets
Total

$ $ $ $

Opening carrying amount 941,856 142,857 30,350 1,115,063

Additions -                   37,485 -               37,485

Depreciation and amortisation (13,904) (41,315) (7,458) (62,677)

Closing carrying amount 927,952 139,027 22,892 1,089,871

2020 2019

$ $

Note 10: Financial Assets

750 750
750 750

Note 11: Trade and Other Payables

Current

 Unsecured liabilities

Trade creditors 49,462         50,390

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 90,331         42,586

139,793 92,976

2020 2019

Note 12: Employee Benefits $ $

Current

Provision for employee benefits 21,185 12,195

Analysis of Employee Benefits
 Employee 

Benefits 
 Total 

$ $

Opening balance at 1 January 2020 12,195 12,195

Additional provisions raised during the year 20,023 20,023

Amounts used (11,033) (11,033)

Balance at 31 December 2020 21,185         21,185         

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the 

beginning and the end of the current financial year:

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. 

The carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value 

due to the short-term nature of the balances.

Shares - The Independent Liquor Group 

Distribution Co-operative Ltd

Non-Current
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Note 12: Employee Benefits (continued)

2020 2019

Note 13: Borrowings $ $

Current

Credit Card 3,683 -               

Insurance Funding Loan 13,148 9,933

Lease Liabilities 7,335 7,369

Bank Loan 27,923 2,672

52,089 19,974

Non-Current

Lease Liabilities 19,682 23,253

Bank Loan 464,562 478,326

Solar Panel Funding Loan 13,678 -               

497,922 501,579

Note 14: Members' Guarantee

The bank loan is secured by a mortgage over the Club's land and buildings.

The Club is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a company limited by guarantee 

without share capital. If the Club is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to 

contribute a maximum of $1 each towards meeting any outstanding liabilities of the Club.  At 31 

December 2020, the number of members was 884.

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements 

and the amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having 

completed the required period of service. Based on past experience, the Club does not expect the full 

amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled 

within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the 

Club does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event 

employees wish to use their leave entitlement.

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave 

entitlements that have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the 

required period of service.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of 

long service leave being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria 

for employee benefits have been discussed in Note 1(h) .

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020
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Note 15: Financial Risk Management

2020 2019

Financial assets $ $

Financial assets at amortised cost:

- cash and cash equivalents 144,106 55,281

- trade and other receivables 914 2,737

145,020 58,018

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

- trade and other payables 139,793 92,976

139,793 92,976

Note 16: Contingent Liabilities

Note 17: Events after the balance sheet date

Note 17: Related Party Transactions

Atosha Clancy Jayd Crowe Ian Dall

Simon Evans Ian Holden

Rowan Keast Sonny Singh

Rebekah Harwood

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2020

No matters of significance have arisen since the end of the financial year, which significantly affected 

or may significantly affect the operations of the Club, the results of those operations, or the state of 

affairs of the Club in future financial years.

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of the year are:

The Club’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable 

and leases.

The total amount for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 :   

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as detailed in the accounting policies to these 

financial statements, are as follows:

From time to time the directors of the Club, or director related entities may purchase/supply goods or 

services from/to the Club.  These purchases/supplies are on the same terms and conditions as those 

entered into by other club employees, members, customers or suppliers.

There are no known contingent liabilities.
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1.

a.

b.

2.

(i)

(ii)

OnTrack Chartered Accountants Paul Morris - Director

53 River Street Registered Company Auditor

Ballina  NSW  2478 12th April 2021

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF 

THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 TO THE DIRECTORS OF BANGALOW 

BOWLING & SPORTS CLUB LIMITED

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 December 2020, there have 

the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club 

Limited will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

12th April 2021

The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 27, are in accordance with the Corporations 

Act 2001 and:

comply with Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of the performance for 

the year ended on that date of the Club.

Atosha Clancy - Vice President

Directors’ Declaration

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited, the directors of 

the Club declare that:

Rowan Keast - President
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Auditor's Opinion

(i)

(ii)

Basis for Opinion

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

I have audited the financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited, which comprises the statement of financial position 

as at 31 December 2020, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information, and the directors' declaration.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited is in accordance with the 

Corporations Act 2001, including:

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the Club in 

accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting 

Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to 

my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

The directors of the Club are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and have 

determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the requirements of the 

Corporations Act 2001 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The directors' responsibility also includes such internal 

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Club's ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors 

either intend to liquidate the Club or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

I confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of 

Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

giving a true and fair view of the Club's financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its financial performance for the year 

then ended; and

complying with Australian Accounting Standards  - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of 

Bangalow Bowling & Sports Club Limited

I confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the directors of the 

Club, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this auditor's report.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Paul Morris - Director

Registered Company Auditor

12th April 2021

OnTrack Chartered Accountants

53 River Street

Ballina NSW 2478

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial 

report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 

scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control.

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Club's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Club's ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw 

attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within 

the Club to express an opinion on the financial report. I am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 

the Club audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

53 River Street (PO Box 988) Ballina NSW 2478

T: 02 6686 4422  F: 02 6686 9679  E: paul.morris@ontrackca.com.au

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation
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